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KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS  
DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2019-20 

 
 

SL 
NO 

 

 
 

NAME 

 
 

DESIGNATION 

 
 

PERIOD 
 

 
1 
 

 
SHRI.K.R. JYOTHILAL IAS 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 
1/08/2016-16/01/2020 

 
2 
 

 
SHRI. B G HARINDRANATH 

 
DIRECTOR 

 
13/11/2015- 17/08/2019 

 
3 
 

 
SHRI. SANJEEV KOUSHIK IAS 

 
DIRECTOR 

 
15/05/2018- 09/02/2020 

 
4 
 

 
SHRI. RAHUL R IRS 

 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
26/11/2017-16/01/2020 

 
5 
 

 
SHRI. VIMAL S V 

 
COMPANY SECRETARY 

 
27/11/2017-30/11/2019 

 
6 
 

SRI. P.K.ARAVINDA BABU DIRECTOR 17/08/2019 - CONTINUING 

7 SMT.R. SREELEKHA . IPS CHAIRMAN & 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 16/01/2020 -  CONTINUING 

8 SRI. S.D.FEROLD ZAVIER DIRECTOR 09/02/2020 -  CONTINUING 

9 SRI. DEEPAK M.J COMPANY SECRETARY 29/09/2020 -  CONTINUING 
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N O T I C E 

Notice is hereby given that the 29
th 

  Adjourned Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the 

Company will be held as under 

Day:      Tuesday 

Date:      04.04.2023 

Time:     3 P.M. 

Venue:    KTDFC, Level 8 (6
th
 Floor), Trans Towers, Thiruvananthapuram 

(Registered Office of the Company) 

To transact with or without modifications, as may be permissible, the following business: 

Ordinary Business 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31
st
 March, 

2020 along with the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, Secretary (Finance- 

Expenditure) and replies thereto and the reports of Board of Directors and statutory auditors thereon. 

2. To take note of the appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company.   

 

By the order of the board of  

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Limited 

 

 

Place Thiruvananthapuram                                                                                       DR.CHIDAMBARAIYER.J                                  

Date   09 /03/2023                                                                                                     COMPANY SECRETARY 

 

Note:  

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of Himself 

and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. The instrument appointing proxy should however be 

deposited at the Registered office of the Company note less that 48hours from the commencement of the 

meeting. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Member, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report along with the   
audited statements of account of your Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2020. 
 
1. Financial Highlights 
 
The performance of your Company has been satisfactory. The following table shows  
the operational results of the Company for the year 2019-20 as compared to that of  
the previous year. 
 
Particulars As at the end of 

current reporting 
period 

As at the end of 
previous reporting 
period 

Total Revenue 65,77,25,745 1,40,31,646,73 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Expenses 

8,62,29,580 8,47,00,633 

Total Expenses 1,41,99,60,515 4,66,43,03,579 
Profit or Loss before Exceptional and 
Extraordinary items and Tax 

(76,22,34,769) (3,26,11,38,905) 

Less: Current Tax - - 
          Deferred Tax Benefit 3,12,76,965 (84,80,86,628) 
Profit or Loss After Tax (79,35,11,734) (2,41,30,52,277) 
 
2. Operation 
 
During the year under review, your Company has achieved a gross turnover 
of Rs. 65,77,25,745 as against Rs. 1,40,31,646,73/- in the previous year. 
The Company Has a Net loss of Rs. 79,35,11,734/-as against Net Loss of 
Rs. Rs.241,30,52,277/- in the previous year after providing for depreciation 
of Rs.8,62,29,580/- as against Rs. 8,47,00,633/-in the previous year. The 
Total revenue of the company for the financial year under review includes 
the income generated from the BOT projects also. The Board of Directors 
and Management of the company are trying to reduce the losses of the 
company and designing a strategy to increase the net worth and in turn to 
improve the shareholders value of the company  
 
3. Dividend 
 
Board of Directors of the company has not proposed any dividend to recommend to 
the members of the company during the financial year 2019-2020 and the 
company has recorded a loss to the tune of Rs. 79,35,11,734/- during the 
financial year 2019-2020. The final dividend if approved by the members will be 
paid within the stipulated time period. 
 
 
4. Change in nature of Business 
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During the financial year 2019-2020 under review, there was no change in  
the business of the company. 
 
5. Transfer to Reserves 
As the  Company incurred a  Net Loss Rs. 79,35,11,734/- during the financial 
year under review , the Board of Directors of the company has decided not to 
transfer any amount by way of  reserves.   
 
6. Share Capital 
The authorised share capital of the company as at March31, 2020 is 
Rs.50,00,00,000/-(Rupees fifty crore only) divided into 5,00,000 (five lakhs) equity 
shares of Rs.1000/- (Rupees One Thousand Only) each. The issued, subscribed 
and paid up share capital of the company as on the mentioned date 
is43,83,00,000/-(Rupees Forty Three crores eighty three lakhs only) divided into 
4,38,300(Four Lakhs thirty eight thousand three hundred) equity shares of 
Rs.1000/- (Rupees One thousand only) each. There was no change in the capital 
structure of the company during the financial year. 
  
7. Deposits 
 
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking 
Financial 
Company in the Category ND-SI (Non Deposit taking Systemically Important) and 
accepts Deposits from the public as per the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India from time to time.. Company accept deposits within the limit guaranteed by 
the Government of Kerala. As per RBI Rules and Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposits Rules) 2014, any amount received from the Central Government or a State 
Government, or any amount received from any other source whose repayment is 
guaranteed by the Central Government or a State Government will not be treated 
as Deposits/Public Deposits. So Deposits accepted by the company does not come 
under the purview of acceptance of Public deposits as per Companies Act 2013. 
During the year under review the company had an opening balance of Deposits 
amount to Rs.976.25/-Crores and company repaid the matured amount of deposits 
together with interest   Rs.457.06/- Crores and received an amount of Rs.272.42/- 
crores by way of deposits during the year. At the end of the financial year 2019-
2020 the company had an outstanding deposits of Rs.791.61/- crores. 
 
8. Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel during the Financial Year 
2019-20 

Sl.
No. 

Name DIN Designation 

1 SHRI.KALLUVILAVEEDU RAVINDRAN 
JYOTHILAL.I.A.S(SECRETARY, TRANSPORT 
DEPARTMENT, GOVERNMENT OF KERALA) 
  

01650017 CHAIRMAN 

 

2 SHRI.SANJEEV KAUSHIK I.A.S (SECRETARY- 
FINANCE (RESOURCES) 
 

02842527 DIRECTOR  
 

SHRI.S.D. FEROLD XAVIER (SINCE 09.2.2020)  DIRECTOR 

3. SHRI.RAHUL RAGHUVARAN PILLAI.IRS. 06994483 MANAGING DIRECTOR 

4 SHRI.HARINDRANATH BALAKRISHNAN 
GOURINANADAN, (LAW SECRETARY, 

07212620 DIRECTOR 
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9. Key Managerial Personnel during the Financial Year as on date of the 
report  
 

Sl. No Name Designation  
1 SHRI.RAHUL RAGHUVARANPILLAI. IRS MANAGING DIRECTOR 

 
2 SHRI. VIMAL S.V.  

 
COMPANY SECRETARY 
 

 
The Board has further evaluated its own performance and that of its committees  
and individual directors.  
 
10. Meetings of Board of Directors 
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, Four Meetings of the Board of 
Directors of the Company was held. 
 

Date of Board Meetings Total Number of Directors 
associated on the date of 

meetings 

Number of Directors 
attended 

03.04.2019 5 3 
26.06.2019 5 3 
24.09.2019 5 3 
22.11.2019 5 2 
19.03.2020 5 4 

 
 

11. Attendance of Directors 
 

 
 
 
Sl.
No 

 
 
 

Name of Directors 

Date of Meetings 

03
.0

4.
20

19
 

26
.0

6.
20

19
 

24
.0

9.
20

19
 

 22
.1

1.
20

19
 

19
.0

3.
20

20
 

1. Shri. Kalluvilaveedu  Raveendran Jyothilal.IAS p P P P P 
2. Shri.Sanjeev Kaushik. I.A.S A A A A - 
3 Shri. S.D. Ferold Xavier  - - - - P 
3. Shri.Rahul Raghuvaran Pillai.IRS p p p p p 
4 Shri.Harindranath Balakrishnan   Gourinandanan  p A P P P 

11“p““P 
12. Declaration on Independent Directors 
 
Not applicable 
 
13. Related Party Transactions 
There is no significant transactions with related parties   has been made by the 
company during the related party transaction during the year under review. 

GOVERNMENT       OF   KERALA   
 

5. VIMAL.S.V  COMPANY SECRETARY 
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14. Particulars of Employees 
During the period under review, no employee of the Company has received 
remuneration at a rate, which, in the aggregate was more than Rs.8,50,000/- or 
more per month or Rs.102,00,000/- or more per annum and no employee was in 
receipt of remuneration in that year ,which in the aggregate , or as the case may be 
, at a rate which , in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the Managing 
Director or whole time director or manager and holds by himself or along with his 
spouse and dependent children not less than two percent of the equity shares of 
the company and hence there was no requirement of a statement under Rule 5(2) of 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial personnel ) 
Rules,2014. 
 
15. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 
 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
16. Auditors & Audit Observations 
 
Ranjit Karthikeyan Associates,   Chartered Accountants, Thiruvananthapuram 
were reappointed as the Auditors of the Company by Controller and Audit General 
Of India as per section 139(5) of the Company’s Act 2013. Necessary certificate has 
been obtained from the Auditors as per Section 139 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Auditor’s observations are suitably explained in notes to the Accounts and are 
self-explanatory. The   reply for the comments/qualifications of the statutory 
auditors is enclosed as addendum to Directors’ Report 
 
17. Cost Audit Report 
 
Not applicable.  
 
18. Secretarial Audit Report 
 
Not applicable. 
 
19. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures& Associates  
 
During the year, no companies had become subsidiaries, Joint ventures, and 
Associated Companies of the Company. This information may be considered as per 
Rule 8 (5) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 
 
20. Extract of Annual Return 
 
The details regarding extract of Annual Return in Form No: MGT-9 pursuant to 
Section 92 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure –A which is 
also available in company’s online portal 
 
21. Disclosures Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Work place 
(Prevention,       Prohibition & redressal) Act, 2013 
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During the financial year, there were no cases reported or filed regarding sexual 
harassment of women at workplace 
22. Fraud Reporting 
 
During the Financial Year, there were no cases regarding fraud have been reported 
the            Board /Central Government. 

 
23. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Inflow 
&       Outflow 
 
A.  Conservation  of Energy, Technology Absorption 

 
The particulars as required under provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the 
Companies Act,2013 in respect of conservation of energy and technology 
absorption have not been furnished considering the nature of activities 
undertaken by the company during the year under review. 

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 
The Company has not earned or incurred any foreign currency from the export 
or import during the financial year 2019-2020 

 
24. Corporate Governance 
The Company has been complying with the principles of good Corporate 
Governance over the years and is committed to the highest standards of 
compliance.  
 
25. Development and Implementation of Risk Management Policy 
 
Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy for evaluating 
various risks impacting the Company. 
 
26. Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial 
Statements 
 
The Company has implemented and evaluated the Internal Financial Controls 
which  
Provide a reasonable assurance in respect of providing financial and operational 
information, complying with applicable statutes and policies, safeguarding of 
assets, prevention and detection of frauds, accuracy and completeness of 
accounting records.  
 
The Directors and Management confirm that the Internal Financial Controls are 
adequate with respect to the operations of the Company. 
 
27. Annual Evaluation, material changes and commitments 
 
No Material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
Company has been occurred between the end of the financial year 2019-20 and till 
the date of this report. 
 
 
28. Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to the requirement of Sub-Section 5 of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 
2013, your Directors confirm that:- 
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(a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting 

Standards have been followed and that there are no material departures. 
 
(b) Selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made  

Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of your Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for that year. 

 
(c) Taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of your Company and for preventing 
and detecting  
fraud and other irregularities. 

 
(d) Prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 
 
(e) Had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating 
effectively. 
 
(f) Devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively. 

 
 

              
          29. Acknowledgement  
 

Your Directors wish to take this opportunity to place on record their gratitude 
and sincere appreciation for the timely and valuable assistance and support 
received from Bankers, Auditors, Customers, Suppliers and Regulatory 
Authorities. The Board values and appreciates the valuable committed services 
of the employees towards performance of your Company, without which it 
would not have been possible to achieve all round progress and growth. Your 
Directors are thankful to the shareholders for their continued patronage. 
 

 
 

                                                           On behalf of Board of Director of 
                             Kerala Transport development Finance Corporation 

Limited 
 
 

          
 
         DR.B.ASHOK.IAS 
       Chairman and Managing Director 
 

 
Place: Thiruvananthapuram 
Date: 30/03/2023 
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ADDENDUM TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

SL NO. 
COMMENTS OF 

STATUTORY AUDITOR  
REPLY TO THE COMMENTS 

I. 

The methods of accounting 

adopted for the purpose of 

BOT Projects are not as per the 

accounting method adhering to 

the terms and conditions in the 

concerned government orders. 

Hence the income from 

leasing/expenditure on BOT 

Operations included in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss 

Account is neither the income 

nor the expenditure of the 

Company. 

As per the comments of the Comptroller &Auditor 

General of India under Sec 143 (6)(b) of the 

companies Act 2013 issued for the year ended 31
st
 

March 2018, Income from leasing is the rental 

income of the company from BOT projects which is 

derived after adjusting expenses and share of 

KSRTC from the same. Share of KSRTC is 50% of 

Net Income (i.e, Renal Income- Expenses). The 

method of accounting adopted has not been 

disclosed separately under accounting policies. 

Here in the above said Comments on disclosure of 

Comptroller & Auditor General is only pointing out  

the disclosure requirement & accepting that rental 

income is the income of the company. Moreover 

since the receipt of rental income none of the 

Statutory Auditors had pointed out the income from 

leasing/ expenditure on BOT operations included in 

the statement of profit and loss account neither the 

income nor the expenditure of the company. 

Also we requested the Government to fix the interest 

rate for BOT projects..Once it is fixed we will follow 

the method mentioned by Statutory Auditor 

II 

The Company has defaulted in 

transferring Rs. 12.13 lakh to 

the Investor Education 

Protection Fund as per the 

provisions of Companies Act, 

2013. 

Noted & we will transfer the defaulted amount to the 

Investor Education Protection Fund after obtaining 

the approval from Board. 

III 

The realisability of old 

outstanding receivables are 

doubtful for which adequate 

provisions are not made in the 

accounts due to lack of 

information. 

KTDFC has the age wise analysis of outstanding 

receivables for more than 6 months as well as less 

than 6 months. Those receivable were aroused as 

part of our BOT projects and the same are still our 

existing tenants, so there is a chance of recoupment. 

Hence the said contention of Statutory Auditor is not 

valid. 

IV 

The confirmation of balances 

for receivables on 31.03.2020 

has not been obtained. In the 

absence of records we are not 

in a position to form an 

opinion on this. 

Obtaining confirmation of balance for receivables 

are impractical in case of KTDFC as the said 

receivables aroused as part of our BOT projects and 

moreover most of them are individual parties not 

being technically competent to provide such 

confirmations. 

However KTDFC maintain proper books of records 

and files for the tenants. 
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V 

Fixed deposit from public is 

Rs. 791.61 crore (in Note No. 

3.3 and Note No. 3.7). 

This deposit, excluding the FD 

suspense and FD payable, 

comes to Rs. 778.94 crore, 

which does not tally with the 

subsidiary ledger which shows 

a balance Rs. 788.83 crore. It 

was explained that the 

difference of .47 crore is not 

reconciled due to non-

availability of data. In the 

absence of records we are not 

in a position to form an 

opinion on this. Further 

footnote (iv) of the Note 3.3 

says that there is no default in 

repayment of deposits and 

interest there on, whereas foot 

note (v) says that Rs. 34.68 

lakh shown under Suspense 

Account because of non-

receipt of application from the 

concerned parties, i.e. 

depositors. In other words the 

repayment of principal and 

interest on deposit under 

Suspense Account is pending. 

Since the FD term is only 5 years, there have been 

no claims from any depositors for the past 7 years. 

The amount of Rs. 0.47 Crore is due to duplication 

of data which cannot be reconciled due to the non-

availability of detailed ledger prior to 2011-12 

The amount in FD suspense cannot be cleared or 

interest provided for till the depositors submitted the 

application for the said amount deposited. 

The management in consultation with Statutory 

Auditor will take a decision as to the treatment of the 

amounts in the books of accounts for the FY-2020-

21. 

VI 

Other Long term Liabilities (in 

Note No. 3.4) of Rs. 38.86 

crore include ‘Sundry creditors 

for Fixed Assets’ of Rs. 0.37 

crore and ‘Trans tower 

expenses payable to 

Government of Kerala’ of Rs. 

5.83 lakh which are 

outstanding over a period of 

time in respect of which no 

confirmation was obtained. We 

are not in a position to form an 

opinion on the correctness of 

the amount & its nature due to 

lack of information and 

Prior to 2011-12 KTDFC does not have detailed 

ledgers. The said amount of Rs. 0.37 Crore is 

pending in the books of accounts since 2007-08. But 

out of which an amount of RS. 6,82,940/- is towards 

the payment of a contractor. Balance amount to Rs. 

0.30 Crore is an excess provision. 

 

In the case of Rs. 5.83 lakh in 2007-08 as per the 

recommendation of Statutory Auditor the net rental 

Income (Rental Income – Rental Expenditure)  was 

accounted as payable to Govt. of Kerala. But from 

2008-09 then the newly appointed Statutory Auditor 

advised that since the BOT terms for Trans Tower 

was not yet finalized by Govt. provision should not 

be made for net rental income. Hence the said 
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crore and ‘Trans tower 
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Government of Kerala’ of Rs. 

5.83 lakh which are 

outstanding over a period of 

time in respect of which no 

confirmation was obtained. We 
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the amount & its nature due to 

lack of information and 

Prior to 2011-12 KTDFC does not have detailed 

ledgers. The said amount of Rs. 0.37 Crore is 

pending in the books of accounts since 2007-08. But 

out of which an amount of RS. 6,82,940/- is towards 

the payment of a contractor. Balance amount to Rs. 

0.30 Crore is an excess provision. 

 

In the case of Rs. 5.83 lakh in 2007-08 as per the 

recommendation of Statutory Auditor the net rental 

Income (Rental Income – Rental Expenditure)  was 

accounted as payable to Govt. of Kerala. But from 

2008-09 then the newly appointed Statutory Auditor 

advised that since the BOT terms for Trans Tower 

was not yet finalized by Govt. provision should not 

be made for net rental income. Hence the said 

explanation. amount is pending for the past 10 years. 

VII 

‘Other Long Term Liability’ of 

Rs.7.83 Crore (in Note No 3.4) 

includes Rs.4.18 Lakhs which 

represents excess tax deducted 

and remitted by various parties 

from taxable payments made 

to the company for the 

previous years in respect of 

which credit has been availed 

in the Income Tax Return for 

that year but no adjustments 

have been made in the books 

of accounts. 

The amount of Rs. 4.18 lakh represents the excess 

TDS remittance by our bankers on the interest of 

Term Deposits made with them during the FY- 

2015-16, in respect of which we had availed the 

credits in the Income Tax return of that year itself 

but no adjustments have been made in the books of 

accounts. 

Moreover the said qualification was already raised in 

FY-2017-18. Before RBI & AG, KTDFC has given 

the same explanation and that the management in 

consultation with Statutory Auditor will take a 

decision as to the treatment of the amounts in the 

books of accounts for the FY-2020-21. 

VIII 

The Suspense Account balance 

of Rs. 83.83 lakh (in Note No 

3.4) not adjusted or transferred 

to respective heads due to lack 

of necessary supporting 

evidences and it includes 

transactions with various banks 

and Kerala Building and 

Construction Workers Welfare 

which are subject to clearance 

(Refer Note no 4.2.i). In the 

absence of relevant records we 

are not in a position to form an 

opinion on the above. 

The Suspense Account balance represents the major 

portion relating to the amount received from our 

tenants as well as FD suspense. The reason for FD 

suspense is due to non-submission of application and 

KYC details of FD holder at the time of transferring 

the amount to our bank account maintained 

exclusively for the purpose of FD mobilization, as a 

result of that we are forced to book these amounts to 

a separate ledger called “FD Suspense”. Whereas in 

case of tenants the amount may be transferred or 

deposited in cash by self without intimating us, so 

we could not be able to identify the amounts. 

However our earnest efforts are being made to clear 

the suspense amounts through bank reconciliation 

and follow up of transactions with Bank officials. 

IX 

The liability in respect of 

gratuity and encashment of 

earned leave to the employees 

are not provided as per 

Accounting Standard 15 on 

‘Employee Benefits’ (Refer 

Note No 4.3.i). We are not in a 

position to comment on the 

adequacy of the provision of 

the above accounts. 

Since KTDFC has only 9 permanent employees. AS-

15 is not followed for valuation purpose. KTDFC 

has computed employee benefits as per the rules of 

Gratuity Act 1972. 

X 

‘Other Liabilities’ of Rs. 71.17 

lakh ( in Note No.3.7 ) include 

credit balance in the various 

loan accounts, amounting to 

Rs. 4.15 lakh. This is yet to be 

reconciled with the subsidiary 

ledgers. In the absence of 

During the FY-2018-19 there are 106 loans with 

credit balance amounting to Rs. 12.77 Lakhs. During 

the year it is reduced and the balance amounting to 

Rs.4.15lakhs for 51 loans for which files are 

available with KTDFC. We will rectify these loan 

during the financial year 2020-21 
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relevant papers we are not in a 

position to make an opinion on 

the same. 

XI 

The correctness of the 

“Statutory Liabilities” of Rs. 

270.73 lakh ( in Note No. 3.7) 

is not verifiable due to the lack 

of supporting documents. 

Interest on such Statutory 

Liabilities are not worked out 

and accounted. 

Out of Rs.270.73 Lakh an amount of Rs. 

188.80Lakh is due on 31
st
 March 2020 and it is paid 

in the subsequent month complying with the due 

dates of viz, TDS,GST,PF,ESI etc. On 7
th

 April, 20
th

 

April & 15
th

 April 2019 respectively. Apart from 

that an amount of Rs. 9.47 Lakhs is pertaining to 

Service Tax liability for the FY 2016-17. The same 

was remitted during the FY-2022-23 and an amount 

of Rs.12.32 lakhs pertaining to the Service Tax 

Liability towards “Centage Charges” of Tagore 

Theatre, which can be payable only upon the receipt 

of such payment received from I & PRD. 

XII 

‘Interest accrued but not due’ 

has not been classified into 

current and non-current 

liabilities. 

Noted & from FY 2020-21 Interest Accrued will be 

classified as current & non Current 

XIII 

Loan outstanding against 

KSRTC (in Note No 3.11 & 

3.15) amounting to Rs. 596.68 

crore is subject to 

reconciliation with repayment 

schedule and supporting 

documents. 

 

Supporting documents are available for all loans of 

KSRTC. 

XIV 

Construction Loan, Housing 

Loan, Vehicle Loan, Personal 

loan and Other loan totaling to 

Rs. 50.92 crore disclosed 

under ‘Long Term Loans and 

Advances’ (in Note No 3.11) 

and Rs. 0.32 core as ‘Current 

maturities of Loan Assets’ ( in 

Note No 3.15 ) are subject to 

confirmation. 

 

Regarding these loans KTDFC maintain proper 

accounts. Earlier no software has been developed in 

KTDFC. Now steps are taken to solve these issues. 

XV 

Other Non-Current Assets (in 

Note No 3.12) includes an 

amount Rs. 0.63 lakh towards 

Long Term Trade Receivable 

which are categorized as 

Doubtful against which no 

provision was made during the 

current year. 

We have provided the provision for Rs. 0.63 Lakh 

during FY-2018-19 and in current FY-2019-20 we 

have created provision for Rs. 1.39 Lakh and total 

provision became Rs. 2.02 lakh (Other Non-Current 

Assets in Note No 3.12) 



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 15

relevant papers we are not in a 

position to make an opinion on 

the same. 

XI 

The correctness of the 

“Statutory Liabilities” of Rs. 

270.73 lakh ( in Note No. 3.7) 

is not verifiable due to the lack 

of supporting documents. 

Interest on such Statutory 

Liabilities are not worked out 

and accounted. 

Out of Rs.270.73 Lakh an amount of Rs. 

188.80Lakh is due on 31
st
 March 2020 and it is paid 

in the subsequent month complying with the due 

dates of viz, TDS,GST,PF,ESI etc. On 7
th

 April, 20
th

 

April & 15
th

 April 2019 respectively. Apart from 

that an amount of Rs. 9.47 Lakhs is pertaining to 

Service Tax liability for the FY 2016-17. The same 

was remitted during the FY-2022-23 and an amount 

of Rs.12.32 lakhs pertaining to the Service Tax 

Liability towards “Centage Charges” of Tagore 

Theatre, which can be payable only upon the receipt 

of such payment received from I & PRD. 

XII 

‘Interest accrued but not due’ 

has not been classified into 

current and non-current 

liabilities. 

Noted & from FY 2020-21 Interest Accrued will be 

classified as current & non Current 

XIII 

Loan outstanding against 

KSRTC (in Note No 3.11 & 

3.15) amounting to Rs. 596.68 

crore is subject to 

reconciliation with repayment 

schedule and supporting 

documents. 

 

Supporting documents are available for all loans of 

KSRTC. 

XIV 

Construction Loan, Housing 

Loan, Vehicle Loan, Personal 

loan and Other loan totaling to 

Rs. 50.92 crore disclosed 

under ‘Long Term Loans and 

Advances’ (in Note No 3.11) 

and Rs. 0.32 core as ‘Current 

maturities of Loan Assets’ ( in 

Note No 3.15 ) are subject to 

confirmation. 

 

Regarding these loans KTDFC maintain proper 

accounts. Earlier no software has been developed in 

KTDFC. Now steps are taken to solve these issues. 

XV 

Other Non-Current Assets (in 

Note No 3.12) includes an 

amount Rs. 0.63 lakh towards 

Long Term Trade Receivable 

which are categorized as 

Doubtful against which no 

provision was made during the 

current year. 

We have provided the provision for Rs. 0.63 Lakh 

during FY-2018-19 and in current FY-2019-20 we 

have created provision for Rs. 1.39 Lakh and total 

provision became Rs. 2.02 lakh (Other Non-Current 

Assets in Note No 3.12) 

relevant papers we are not in a 

position to make an opinion on 

the same. 

XI 

The correctness of the 

“Statutory Liabilities” of Rs. 

270.73 lakh ( in Note No. 3.7) 

is not verifiable due to the lack 

of supporting documents. 

Interest on such Statutory 

Liabilities are not worked out 

and accounted. 

Out of Rs.270.73 Lakh an amount of Rs. 

188.80Lakh is due on 31
st
 March 2020 and it is paid 

in the subsequent month complying with the due 

dates of viz, TDS,GST,PF,ESI etc. On 7
th

 April, 20
th

 

April & 15
th

 April 2019 respectively. Apart from 

that an amount of Rs. 9.47 Lakhs is pertaining to 

Service Tax liability for the FY 2016-17. The same 

was remitted during the FY-2022-23 and an amount 

of Rs.12.32 lakhs pertaining to the Service Tax 

Liability towards “Centage Charges” of Tagore 

Theatre, which can be payable only upon the receipt 

of such payment received from I & PRD. 

XII 

‘Interest accrued but not due’ 

has not been classified into 

current and non-current 

liabilities. 

Noted & from FY 2020-21 Interest Accrued will be 

classified as current & non Current 

XIII 

Loan outstanding against 

KSRTC (in Note No 3.11 & 

3.15) amounting to Rs. 596.68 

crore is subject to 

reconciliation with repayment 

schedule and supporting 

documents. 

 

Supporting documents are available for all loans of 

KSRTC. 

XIV 

Construction Loan, Housing 

Loan, Vehicle Loan, Personal 

loan and Other loan totaling to 

Rs. 50.92 crore disclosed 

under ‘Long Term Loans and 

Advances’ (in Note No 3.11) 

and Rs. 0.32 core as ‘Current 

maturities of Loan Assets’ ( in 

Note No 3.15 ) are subject to 

confirmation. 

 

Regarding these loans KTDFC maintain proper 

accounts. Earlier no software has been developed in 

KTDFC. Now steps are taken to solve these issues. 

XV 

Other Non-Current Assets (in 

Note No 3.12) includes an 

amount Rs. 0.63 lakh towards 

Long Term Trade Receivable 

which are categorized as 

Doubtful against which no 

provision was made during the 

current year. 

We have provided the provision for Rs. 0.63 Lakh 

during FY-2018-19 and in current FY-2019-20 we 

have created provision for Rs. 1.39 Lakh and total 

provision became Rs. 2.02 lakh (Other Non-Current 

Assets in Note No 3.12) 

 

XVI 

Other Current Asset Rs. 1.01 

Crore (in Note No. 3.16), 

include Rs. 9.26 Lakh being 

the balance in TDS (Interest on 

FD) relating to earlier years 

and Rs.4.21 lakh being excess 

TDS recovered from deposit 

holders for which details are 

not available and hence 

adjustments are not made in 

books of accounts. 

These amount due to duplication of data which 

cannot be reconciled due to error of principle by 

posting current year TDS along with Arrear TDS to 

be recoverable from the deposit holders pertaining to 

the FY-2014-15 & 2015-16. 

XVII 

The Company has not 

accounted the penal interest on 

belated receipt of monthly 

lease rent from tenants, 

contrary to lease agreements 

entered into with lessees, the 

amount of which is not 

ascertainable for want of 

supporting information. 

 

The penal interest is accounted on receipt basis as 

followed in NPA provisioning. 

XVIII 

The annuity payable to 

KSRTC from April to Sept-

2018 is worked out and paid. 

However, the same is not as 

per the terms and conditions of 

the concerned government 

order. The annuity from the 

period commencing from Oct 

to Mar-2019 is not accounted.  

As per GO No.42/2007/Tran, the BOT Operator 

(KTDFC) shall pay KSRTC an operating fee 

(Annuity) @ 50% of the net monthly income 

(income after deducting all expenses related to 

operation and maintenance of the building, rate of 

which will be fixed on agreement between KSRTC 

& KTDFC). During the financial year 2018-19 an 

external Chartered Accountant has appointed to 

compute the Annuity payable to KSRTC as on 

30/09/2018 and the same is charged in the financial 

statements of the FY 2018-19. The certification was 

done on the basis of unaudited figures as on 

30/09/2018. Once the audit is complete, the final 

certificate will be done for 2019-20 and the 

provision will be given in the books of accounts in 

that relevant year. 
For and on behalf of Board Of Directors 

 
 

 
 

DR.B.ASHOK IAS 
CHAIRMANA AND MNANAGING DIRECTOR 

Date: 30-03-2023 
Place: Thiruvananthapuram 
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FORM NO AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Rule8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company 
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 
 
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered in to during the year ended 
on 31st March, 2020, which were not at arm’s length basis. 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 
 
SL.
No. Particulars Details 

1 Name of the related party and nature 
of relationship 

Kerala State Road Transport 
Corporation, Government of 
Kerala Undertaking 

2 Nature of contracts/ arrangements/ 
transactions Loan given to KSRTC 

3 Duration of the contracts/ 
arrangements/ transactions NA 

4 
Salient terms of the contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 
including the value, if any 

 

5 Date(s) of approval by the Board 
As per Board approval and 
Government Orders issued 
for each loan 

6 Amount paid as advances, if any NIL 

 
 
 

For and on behalf of  
M/s Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Limited 

 
 
 

DR.B.ASHOK.IAS 
Chairman and Managing Director 
 

 
Thiruvananthapuram 
 
30/03/2023 
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IInnddeeppeennddeenntt  AAuuddiittoorr’’ss  RReeppoorrtt  
  

�o the �em�ers o�  
  
����RRAA��AA  ��RRAA��������RR��  ����������������������  ��II��AA��CC��  CC��RR����RRAA��II����  ��II��II������  
  
RReeppoorrtt  oonn  tthhee  ��ttaannddaa��oonnee  ��iinnaann��iiaa��  ��ttaatteemmeennttss  
 
�e ha�e audited the a��ompanyin� standa�one �inan�ia� statements o� ����RRAA��AA  ��RRAA��������RR��  
����������������������  ��II��AA��CC��  CC��RR����RRAA��II����  ��II��II������ (“the Company”)� �hi�h �omprise the 
�a�an�e �heet as at ��st �ar�h ����� the �tatement o� �ro�it and �oss and the Cash ��o� 
�tatement �or the year then ended� and �otes to the �inan�ia� statements� in��udin� a summary 
o� �i�ni�i�ant A��ountin� �o�i�ies and �ther ��p�anatory In�ormation�  
  

AAdd��eerrssee  ��ppiinniioonn  

In our opinion� �e�ause o� the si�ni�i�an�e o� matter dis�ussed in the �asis �or Ad�erse �pinion 
para�raph� the a�oresaid standa�one �inan�ia� statements do not �i�e a true and �air �ie� in 
�on�ormity �ith the a��ountin� prin�ip�es �enera��y a��epted in India� o� the state o� a��airs o� 
the Company as at ��st �ar�h ����� and its �oss �or the year ended on that date� 
  

��aassiiss  ��oorr  AAdd��eerrssee  ��ppiinniioonn  

I� �he methods o� a��ountin� adopted �or the purpose o� ��� �ro�e�ts are not as per 
the a��ountin� method adherin� to the terms and �onditions in the �on�erned 
�o�ernment orders� �en�e the in�ome �rom �easin� � e�penditure on ��� 
�perations in��uded in the �tatement o� �ro�it and �oss A��ount is neither the 
in�ome nor the e�penditure o� the Company� 

 
II� �he Company has de�au�ted in trans�errin� Rs� ����� �a�h to the In�estor 

�du�ation �rote�tion �und as per the pro�isions o� Companies A�t� ����� 
 

III� �he rea�isa�i�ity o� o�d outstandin� re�ei�a��es are dou�t�u� �or �hi�h ade�uate 
pro�isions are not made in the a��ounts due to �a�� o� in�ormation� 
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��. The confirmation of balances for receivables on 31.�3.���� has not been obtained. 
�n the absence of records we are not in a position to form an opinion on this. 

 
�. Fixed deposit from public is Rs. 7�1.�1 crore (in Note No. 3.3 and Note No. 3.7). 

This deposit� excluding the F� suspense and F� payable� comes to Rs. 778.�4 
crore� which does not tally with the subsidiary ledger which shows a balance Rs. 
788.83 crore. �t was explained that the difference of .47 crore is not reconciled due 
to non�availability of data. �n the absence of records we are not in a position to 
form an opinion on this. 

 Further footnote (iv) of the Note 3.3 says that there is no default in repayment of 
deposits and interest there on� whereas foot note (v) says that Rs. 34.�8 la�h 
shown under Suspense Account because of non�receipt of application from the 
concerned parties� i.e. depositors.  �n other words the repayment of principal and 
interest on deposit under Suspense Account is pending. 

 
��. Other Long term Liabilities (in Note No. 3.4) of Rs. 38.8� crore include ‘Sundry 

creditors for Fixed Assets’ of Rs. �.37 core and ‘Trans tower expenses payable to 
Government of Kerala’ of Rs. �.83 la�h which are outstanding over a period of time 
in respect of which no confirmation was obtained. �e are not in a position to form 
an opinion on the correctness of the amount � its nature due to lac� of information 
and explanation. 
 

���. ‘Other Long Term Liability’ of Rs.7.83 Crore (in Note No 3.4) includes Rs.4.18 
La�hs which represents excess tax deducted and remitted by various parties from 
taxable payments made to the company for the previous years in respect of which 
credit has been availed in the �ncome Tax Return for that year but no ad�ustments 
have been made in the boo�s of accounts. 

 
����. The Suspense Account balance of Rs. 83.83 la�h (in Note No 3.4) not ad�usted or 

transferred to respective heads due to lac� of necessary supporting evidences and 
it includes transactions with various ban�s and Kerala �uilding and Construction 
�or�ers �elfare which are sub�ect to clearance (Refer Note no 4.�.i). �n the 
absence of relevant records we are not in a position to form an opinion on the 
above. 

 
��. ‘Other Liabilities’ of Rs. 71.17 la�h (in Note No.3.7 ) include credit balance in the 

various loan accounts� amounting to Rs. 4.1� la�h. This is yet to be reconciled with 
the subsidiary ledgers. �n the absence of relevant papers we are not in a position to 
ma�e an opinion on the same. 
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�. “Statutory Liabilities” of Rs. ���.�� la�h (in �ote �o. �.�) include a credit balance 
of Rs. ��.�� la�h relating to various Statutory Liabilities of preceding financial 
years. Due to the lac� of supporting documents� the correctness of which is not 
verifiable. Interest on such Statutory Liabilities are not wor�ed out and accounted. 

 
�I. ‘Interest accrued but not paid’ has not been classified into current and non�current 

liabilities. 
 

�II. Loan outstanding against �SRTC (in �ote �o �.11 � �.1�) amounting to Rs. ���.�� 
crore is sub�ect to confirmation from �erala State Road Transport Corporation. 

 
�III. Construction Loan� �ousing Loan� �ehicle Loan� �ersonal loan and Other loan 

totalling to Rs. ��.�� crore disclosed under ‘Long Term Loans and Advances’ (in 
�ote �o �.11) and Rs. �.�� core as ‘Current maturities of Loan Assets’  ( in �ote �o 
�.1� ) are sub�ect to confirmation. 

 
�I�.  ‘Other Current Asset’ Rs. 1.�1 crore (in �ote �o. �.1�)� include Rs. �.�� la�h being 

the balance in ‘TDS (Interest on FD) relating to earlier years’ and Rs.�.�1 la�h 
being ‘e�cess TDS recovered from deposit holders’ for which details are not 
available and hence ad�ustments are not made in boo�s of accounts. 
 

��. The annuity payable to �SRTC from the period commencing from October ��1� to 
�arch ���� is not accounted and paid. 

 
��ooiinngg  CCoonncceerrnn  
The main ob�ect of the company is to finance transport vehicle particularly for �SRTC and for 
building up commercially viable infrastructural facilities of �SRTC. The fund e�pended for BOT 
�ro�ect together with the rate of return and the loans e�tended to �SRTC are on the basis of 
government orders�underta�ing. The �oing concern concept is entirely dependent on the 
realisability of amount from �SRTC � �overnment of �erala. 
 
��eeyy  AAuuddiitt  ��aatttteerrss  
As per the concerned government order “BOT period will be the duration of the operating 
period of the pro�ect till the total pro�ect cost and the rate of interest (ROI) of the period (which 
shall be fi�ed by �erala Transport Finance Development Finance Corporation and approved by 
the �overnment) is reali�ed fully from the pro�ect by way of net rental income generated and 
collected by the BOT operator from the BOT pro�ect after payment of annuity to �SRTC.  
  
The government orders stipulates that the company should fi� a rate for charging interest� 
returns on BOT investment during the operating period of the BOT and get it approved by the 
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government. The interest� returns is yet to be fi�ed. As such one of the ma�or incomes is not 
accounted. 

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt’’ss  RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittyy  ffoorr  SSttaannddaalloonnee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
�ndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule � of the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 201�. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of ade�uate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities� selection and application of appropriate accounting policies� ma�ing �udgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent� and design, implementation and maintenance 
of ade�uate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
�n preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
li�uidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The 
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
AAuuddiittoorr’’ss  RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittyy  ffoorr  tthhee  AAuuddiitt  ooff  tthhee  FFiinnaanncciiaall  SSttaatteemmeennttss  

�ur ob�ectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it e�ists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be e�pected to influence the 
economic decisions of users ta�en on the basis of these financial statements.  
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we e�ercise professional �udgment and maintain  
�rofessional s�epticism throughout the audit. �e also� 
 

 �dentify and assess the ris�s of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those ris�s, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The ris� of not detecting a 
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material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error� as fraud may involve collusion� forgery� intentional omissions� 
misrepresentations� or the override of internal control. 

 
 �btain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. �nder 
section �������i� of the Companies �ct� ����� we are also responsible for 
e�pressing our opinion on whether the company has ade�uate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 
 �valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 

basis of accounting and� based on the audit evidence obtained� whether a 
material uncertainty e�ists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty e�ists� we are re�uired to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or� if 
such disclosures are inade�uate� to modify our opinion. �ur conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
�owever� future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
 �valuate the overall presentation� structure and content of the financial 

statements� including the disclosures� and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 
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OOtthheerr  RReeppoorrttiinn��  RReessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  
 
1� As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the 

Central �o�ernment o� �ndia in terms o� sub�section (11) o� �ection 1�� o� the Companies 
Act, 201�, �e enclose in the ““AAnnnneexxuurree  AA”” statement on the matters speci�ied in para�raphs 
� and � o� the Order, to the extent applicable� 
 

2� �e are enclosin� our report in terms o� �ection 1��(�) o� the Act, on the basis o� such 
chec�s o� the boo�s and records o� the Company as �e considered appropriate and 
accordin� to the in�ormation and explanation �i�en to us, in the ““AAnnnneexxuurree  ��”” on the 
directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor �eneral o� �ndia� 

�� As required by �ection 1�� (�) o� the Act, �e report that �� 
 
(a) except �or the e��ects o� the matter described in the �asis �or Ad�erse Opinion 

para�raph, �e ha�e sou�ht and obtained all the in�ormation and explanations �hich to 
the best o� our �no�led�e and belie� �ere necessary �or the purpose o� our audit� 

 
(b) in our opinion, proper boo�s o� account as required by la� ha�e been �enerally 

maintained by the Company so �ar as appears �rom our examination o� those boo�s� 
�o�e�er as per the existin� system maintained by the company the historical data can 
be tampered� 

 
(c) the �alance �heet and the �tatement o� �ro�it and �oss, Cash �lo� �tatement dealt �ith 

by this Report are in a�reement �ith the so called boo�s o� account� 
 
(d) in our opinion, except �or the e��ects o� the matter described in the �asis �or Ad�erse 

Opinion para�raphs abo�e, the a�oresaid �inancial statements comply �ith the 
accountin� standards speci�ied under section 1�� o� the Act, read �ith rule � o� the 
Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules, 2016� 

 
(e) on the basis o� in�ormation pro�ided by the Company, none o� the directors is 

disquali�ied as on �arch �1, 2020 �rom bein� appointed as a director in terms o� �ection 
16� (2) o� the Act� 

 
(�) �ith respect to the adequacy o� the internal �inancial controls o�er �inancial reportin� o� 

the Company and the operatin� e��ecti�eness o� such controls, re�er to our separate 
Report in ““AAnnnneexxuurree  CC””� and 

 
(�)  �ith respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance 

�ith Rule 11 o� the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2016, in our opinion and to 
the best o� our in�ormation and accordin� to the explanations �i�en to us� 
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AA��������UURR����––AA��TTOO��TT������II��DD��PP����DD����TT��AAUUDDIITTOORRSS’’��RR��PPOORRTT��

��
�Re�erre��t��in���r��r������un�er�‘Re��rt��n�Ot�er��e��l��n��Re�ul�t�r��Requirements’�

secti�n�����ur�re��rt����e�en���te��
�

In� terms� ��� ��m��nies� �Au�it�r�s� Re��rt�� Or�er� ������ issue�� b�� t�e� �entr�l�
���ernment����In�i��in�terms����sub�secti�n���������secti�n��������t�e�Act���e��urt�er�
re��rt���n�t�e�m�tters�s�eci�ie��in���r��r�������n�������t�e�s�i��Or�er��t��t���

�
i� In�res�ect�����i�e���ssets��

�
a) t�e���m��n����s�m�int�ine�����i�e��Asset�Re�ister��n��t�e�current��e�r�

���iti�ns�t��t�e��i�e���ssets����e�been�u���te���
�

b) t�e� �i�e�� �ssets� ���e� n�t� been� ���sic�ll�� �eri�ie�� b�� t�e� m�n��ement�
�urin��t�e��e�r��

�
c) t�e�imm���ble��r��ert��in�t�e�n�ture�����uil�in�s���e�el���–��It���l��r����

Tr�ns�T��ers�is��ermitte��t���ccu���b��t�e���m��n���t��ree����c�st��n��
t�e�title��ee�s����t�e�l�n��is�ret�ine��b��t�e���t�r��e�icles�De��rtment��
���ernment�����er�l���

�
ii� T�e� ��m��n�� bein�� ��n���n�in�� �in�nci�l� ��m��n�� ��es� n�t� ���e� �n��

in�ent�r���n���ence�t�e��r��isi�ns�����l�use��ii�����t�e����res�i��Or�er��re�n�t�
���lic�ble�t��t�e���m��n���

�
iii� Acc�r�in��t��t�e�in��rm�ti�n��n��e��l�n�ti�ns��i�en�t��us��t�e�c�m��n����s�n�t�

�r�nte�� �n�� l��ns�� secure�� �r� unsecure�� t�� c�m��nies�� �irms�� ��Ps�� �r� �t�er�
��rties�c��ere�� in�t�e�re�ister�m�int�ine��un�er�Secti�n�������� t�e���m��nies�
Act���������ence���l�use��iii�����t�e�Or�er�is�n�t����lic�ble��

�
i�� In��ur���ini�n�� t�e��r��isi�ns���� secti�n�������� t�e�Act� �re�n�t����lic�ble� t����

c�m��n��t��t��r��i�es�l��ns���i�e��u�r�ntees���r�securities�in�t�e�n�rm�l�c�urse�
���business��t�s�eci�ie��interest�r�te��

�
�urt�er��in��ur���ini�n��n���cc�r�in��t��t�e�in��rm�ti�n��n��e��l�n�ti�ns��i�en�
t��us��t�e�c�m��n��bein������n���n�in���in�nci�l���m��n��is�e�em�t��r�m�t�e�
�r��isi�ns����secti�n��������t�e�Act��n��t�e�rele��nt�rules�in�res�ect����l��ns��n��
�u�r�ntees�� In� res�ect� ��� in�estments�� t�e� c�m��n�� ��s� c�m�lie�� �it�� t�e�
�r��isi�ns��������������t�e�Act��

�
�� T�e��e��sits��cce�te���r�m�t�e��ublic�b��t�e���m��n�����e�been��u�r�ntee��b��

���ernment�����er�l���n���ence�it���es�n�t�c�me�un�er�t�e��e�initi�n����‘Public�
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�Re�erre��t��in���r��r������un�er�‘Re��rt��n�Ot�er��e��l��n��Re�ul�t�r��Requirements’�

secti�n�����ur�re��rt����e�en���te��
�

In� terms� ��� ��m��nies� �Au�it�r�s� Re��rt�� Or�er� ������ issue�� b�� t�e� �entr�l�
���ernment����In�i��in�terms����sub�secti�n���������secti�n��������t�e�Act���e��urt�er�
re��rt���n�t�e�m�tters�s�eci�ie��in���r��r�������n�������t�e�s�i��Or�er��t��t���

�
i� In�res�ect�����i�e���ssets��

�
a) t�e���m��n����s�m�int�ine�����i�e��Asset�Re�ister��n��t�e�current��e�r�

���iti�ns�t��t�e��i�e���ssets����e�been�u���te���
�

b) t�e� �i�e�� �ssets� ���e� n�t� been� ���sic�ll�� �eri�ie�� b�� t�e� m�n��ement�
�urin��t�e��e�r��

�
c) t�e�imm���ble��r��ert��in�t�e�n�ture�����uil�in�s���e�el���–��It���l��r����

Tr�ns�T��ers�is��ermitte��t���ccu���b��t�e���m��n���t��ree����c�st��n��
t�e�title��ee�s����t�e�l�n��is�ret�ine��b��t�e���t�r��e�icles�De��rtment��
���ernment�����er�l���

�
ii� T�e� ��m��n�� bein�� ��n���n�in�� �in�nci�l� ��m��n�� ��es� n�t� ���e� �n��

in�ent�r���n���ence�t�e��r��isi�ns�����l�use��ii�����t�e����res�i��Or�er��re�n�t�
���lic�ble�t��t�e���m��n���

�
iii� Acc�r�in��t��t�e�in��rm�ti�n��n��e��l�n�ti�ns��i�en�t��us��t�e�c�m��n����s�n�t�

�r�nte�� �n�� l��ns�� secure�� �r� unsecure�� t�� c�m��nies�� �irms�� ��Ps�� �r� �t�er�
��rties�c��ere�� in�t�e�re�ister�m�int�ine��un�er�Secti�n�������� t�e���m��nies�
Act���������ence���l�use��iii�����t�e�Or�er�is�n�t����lic�ble��

�
i�� In��ur���ini�n�� t�e��r��isi�ns���� secti�n�������� t�e�Act� �re�n�t����lic�ble� t����

c�m��n��t��t��r��i�es�l��ns���i�e��u�r�ntees���r�securities�in�t�e�n�rm�l�c�urse�
���business��t�s�eci�ie��interest�r�te��

�
�urt�er��in��ur���ini�n��n���cc�r�in��t��t�e�in��rm�ti�n��n��e��l�n�ti�ns��i�en�
t��us��t�e�c�m��n��bein������n���n�in���in�nci�l���m��n��is�e�em�t��r�m�t�e�
�r��isi�ns����secti�n��������t�e�Act��n��t�e�rele��nt�rules�in�res�ect����l��ns��n��
�u�r�ntees�� In� res�ect� ��� in�estments�� t�e� c�m��n�� ��s� c�m�lie�� �it�� t�e�
�r��isi�ns��������������t�e�Act��

�
�� T�e��e��sits��cce�te���r�m�t�e��ublic�b��t�e���m��n�����e�been��u�r�ntee��b��

���ernment�����er�l���n���ence�it���es�n�t�c�me�un�er�t�e��e�initi�n����‘Public�

Deposit’. However the guarantee deed as per the government order stipulating 
the terms and conditions of the guarantee and period of the guarantee is not 
executed. 

 
vi. The �entral �overnment has not prescri�ed the maintenance of cost records 

under section ������ of the �ct, for any of the services rendered �y the company. 
 

vii. �a� �ccording to the information and explanations given to us and on the �asis of 
our examination of the records of the �ompany, amounts deducted�accrued in 
the �oo�s of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, Income Tax, sales�tax, service tax, �oods and 
�ervice Tax have generally �een regularly deposited during the year �y the 
�ompany with the appropriate authorities though there have �een slight delays 
in a few cases. 

 
�ccording to the information and explanations given to us, there were no 
undisputed amounts paya�le in respect of the aforesaid dues which were 
outstanding as at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the 
date they �ecome paya�le except the following� 

 
 
 
 

 
�ame of the 

�tatute 

 
�ature of 

Dues 

�eriod to 
which the 
amount 

relates 

 
�mount 

 
Due �n 

 
�aid �n 

�ervice Tax, �entage     
�hapter �  of charges �� ������� ��,��� ���������� �ot yet 
�inance �ct, 

���� 
��ther 

�ervices� 
   paid 

�ervice Tax, �entage     
�hapter �  of charges �� ������� �,��,��� ���������� �ot yet 
�inance �ct, 

���� 
��ther 

�ervices� 
   paid 

�ervice Tax, �entage     
�hapter � of 
�inance �ct, 

���� 

charges 
��ther 

�ervices� 

�� ������� �,��,��� ���������� �ot yet 
paid 

�ervice Tax, �entage     
�hapter �  of charges �� ������� �,��,��� ���������� �ot yet 
�inance �ct, 

���� 
��ther 

�ervices� 
   paid 

�ervice Tax, �entage     
�hapter �  of charges �� ������� ��,��� ���������� �ot yet 
�inance �ct, 

���� 
��ther 

�ervices� 
   paid 



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd.26



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 27

79,158



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd.28

I. 

  
   
    

     
     
     
     

   

  

     

   

    

  



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 29

I. 

  
   
    

     
     
     
     

   

  

     

   

    

  

     

     
     
     

II. 



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd.30

�iii. ���o��in�� to� t�e� in�o�m�tion� �n�� exp��n�tions� �i�en� to� �s�� t�e� �omp�n�� ��s�
��ise���o�ns���om���n�s�o��ot�e���in�n�i���instit�tions.�

�
�

��me�o����n���in�n�i���instit�tion� �mo�nt��o��o�e��

�ist�i�t��o�ope��ti�e���n���E�n�����m� 1��0�00�00�000�
�ist�i�t��o�ope��ti�e���n������������ 2�00�00�00�000�

�

�nte�est� p��ments� �e�e� �e����te�� �it�� �espe�t� to� ������2020.� ��e�
inte�est�p�����e��s�on��e���en���mo�nts�to��s.�2�3�������1.�

��e��omp�n����s�not�iss�e���n���e�ent��es.�
�

ix. ��e��omp�n���i��not���ise��n��mone���������o�� initi���p���i��o��e��o��
���t�e��p���i��o��e���in����in���e�t�inst��ments���n��te�m��o�ns����in��
t�e��e��.�

�
x. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions� �i�en�to��s��no�m�te�i���

��������� t�e��omp�n��o��on� t�e��omp�n����� its�o��i�e�s�o��emp�o�ees�
��s��een�noti�e��o���epo�te�����in��t�e��o��se�o��o������it.�

�
xi. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�e�to��s��n����se��on�

o���ex�min�tion�o��t�e��e�o��s�o��t�e��omp�n���t�e�p�o�isions�o��se�tion�
1��� �e����it�� ���e���e��� to� t�e���t� is�not� �pp�i����e� to� t�e��omp�n��
�i�e� �oti�i��tion� �o.� ��3�E�� ��te�� 0�.0�.201��� on� ‘Exemptions� to�
�o�e�nment��omp�nies��n�e��se�tion���2�o���omp�nies���t�2013’.�

�

xii. �n�o���opinion��n�����o��in��to�t�e�in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�en�
to� �s�� t�e� �omp�n�� is� not� �� �i��i� �omp�n�.� ���o��in����� p������p��
3�xii��o��t�e����e��is�not��pp�i����e.�

�
xiii. ���o��in��to�t�e�in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�en�to��s��n����se��on�

o��� ex�min�tion� o�� t�e� �e�o��s� o�� t�e� �omp�n��� t��ns��tions��it�� t�e�
�e��te��p��ties���e� in��omp�i�n�e��it��se�tions�1����n��1���o�� t�e���t�
��e�e��pp�i����e��n���et�i�s�o��s����t��ns��tions����e��een��is��ose��in�
t�e� �in�n�i��� st�tements� �s� �e��i�e�� ��� t�e� �pp�i����e� ���o�ntin��
st�n����s.�

�
xi�. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�e�to��s��n����se��on�

o��� ex�min�tion�o�� t�e� �e�o��s� o�� t�e� �omp�n��� t�e� �omp�n����s� not�
m��e��n��p�e�e�enti������otment�o��p�i��te�p���ement�o��s���es�o��������
o��p��t����on�e�ti��e��e�ent��es����in��t�e��e��.�
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�iii. ���o��in�� to� t�e� in�o�m�tion� �n�� exp��n�tions� �i�en� to� �s�� t�e� �omp�n�� ��s�
��ise���o�ns���om���n�s�o��ot�e���in�n�i���instit�tions.�

�
�

��me�o����n���in�n�i���instit�tion� �mo�nt��o��o�e��

�ist�i�t��o�ope��ti�e���n���E�n�����m� 1��0�00�00�000�
�ist�i�t��o�ope��ti�e���n������������ 2�00�00�00�000�

�

�nte�est� p��ments� �e�e� �e����te�� �it�� �espe�t� to� ������2020.� ��e�
inte�est�p�����e��s�on��e���en���mo�nts�to��s.�2�3�������1.�

��e��omp�n����s�not�iss�e���n���e�ent��es.�
�

ix. ��e��omp�n���i��not���ise��n��mone���������o�� initi���p���i��o��e��o��
���t�e��p���i��o��e���in����in���e�t�inst��ments���n��te�m��o�ns����in��
t�e��e��.�

�
x. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions� �i�en�to��s��no�m�te�i���

��������� t�e��omp�n��o��on� t�e��omp�n����� its�o��i�e�s�o��emp�o�ees�
��s��een�noti�e��o���epo�te�����in��t�e��o��se�o��o������it.�

�
xi. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�e�to��s��n����se��on�

o���ex�min�tion�o��t�e��e�o��s�o��t�e��omp�n���t�e�p�o�isions�o��se�tion�
1��� �e����it�� ���e���e��� to� t�e���t� is�not� �pp�i����e� to� t�e��omp�n��
�i�e� �oti�i��tion� �o.� ��3�E�� ��te�� 0�.0�.201��� on� ‘Exemptions� to�
�o�e�nment��omp�nies��n�e��se�tion���2�o���omp�nies���t�2013’.�

�

xii. �n�o���opinion��n�����o��in��to�t�e�in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�en�
to� �s�� t�e� �omp�n�� is� not� �� �i��i� �omp�n�.� ���o��in����� p������p��
3�xii��o��t�e����e��is�not��pp�i����e.�

�
xiii. ���o��in��to�t�e�in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�en�to��s��n����se��on�

o��� ex�min�tion� o�� t�e� �e�o��s� o�� t�e� �omp�n��� t��ns��tions��it�� t�e�
�e��te��p��ties���e� in��omp�i�n�e��it��se�tions�1����n��1���o�� t�e���t�
��e�e��pp�i����e��n���et�i�s�o��s����t��ns��tions����e��een��is��ose��in�
t�e� �in�n�i��� st�tements� �s� �e��i�e�� ��� t�e� �pp�i����e� ���o�ntin��
st�n����s.�

�
xi�. ���o��in��to�t�e� in�o�m�tion��n��exp��n�tions��i�e�to��s��n����se��on�

o��� ex�min�tion�o�� t�e� �e�o��s� o�� t�e� �omp�n��� t�e� �omp�n����s� not�
m��e��n��p�e�e�enti������otment�o��p�i��te�p���ement�o��s���es�o��������
o��p��t����on�e�ti��e��e�ent��es����in��t�e��e��.�
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AANNNNEE��UURREE  ––  ��  TTOO  TT��EE  IINNDDEEPPEENNDDEENNTT  AAUUDDIITTOORRSS’’  RREEPPOORRTT  OOFF  EE��EENN  DDAATTEE  OONN  TT��EE  
SSTTAANNDDAALLOONNEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEE��EENNTTSS  OOFF  ��EERRAALLAA  TTRRAANNSSPPOORRTT  DDEE��EELLOOPP��EENNTT  

FFIINNAANNCCEE  CCOORRPPOORRAATTIIOONN  LLII��IITTEEDD  FFOORR  TT��EE  PPEERRIIOODD  EENNDDEEDD  ����SSTT  ��AARRCC������������  
 
 
 

           ��RRee��eerrrreedd  ttoo  iinn  ppaarraaggrraapphh  ��  uunnddeerr  ‘‘RReeppoorrtt  oonn  OOtthheerr  LLeeggaall  aanndd  RReegguullaattoorryy  RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss’’  
sseeccttiioonn  oo��  oouurr  rreeppoorrtt  oo��  ee��eenn  ddaattee��   

 
           RReeppoorrtt  oonn  tthhee  DDiirreeccttiioonnss  iissssuueedd  bbyy  tthhee  CC  ��  AA��  uunnddeerr  sseeccttiioonn  ������������  oo��  tthhee  CCoommppaanniieess  AAcctt��  ��������  

 
           SSLL  NNOO  DDIIRREECCTTIIOONNSS  RREEPPLLIIEESS  

 

� 

�hether the Company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions 
through IT system� I� yes� the implications 
processing o� accounting transactions outside 
IT system on the integrity o� the accounts 
along �ith the �inancial implications� i� any� 
may be stated� 

The Company has no �oolproo� IT 
system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions� The 
system in place is sub�ect to 
historical data tampering�  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

� 

�hether there is any restructuring o� an 
e�isting loan or cases o� �ai�er��rite o�� o� 
debts�loans�interest etc� made by a lender to 
the Company due to the company’s inability to 
repay the loan� I� yes� the �inancial impact may 
be stated� 

There has been no restructuring 
o� any e�isting loan or cases o� 
�ai�er��rite o�� o� 
debts�loans�interest etc� made 
by a lender to the Company 
during the year� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

� 

�hether �unds recei�ed�recei�able �or speci�ic 
schemes �rom Central�State agencies �ere 
properly accounted �or�utili�ed as per its 
terms and conditions� List the cases o� 
de�iation� 

The Company has not recei�ed 
any �unds during the year� �ence 
not applicable� 

 
 
 
 
 
  
   

            
 
 
 
Tri�andrum 
���������� 
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AANNNNEE��UURREE  ––  ��  TTOO  TT��EE  IINNDDEEPPEENNDDEENNTT  AAUUDDIITTOORRSS’’  RREEPPOORRTT  OOFF  EE��EENN  DDAATTEE  OONN  TT��EE  
SSTTAANNDDAALLOONNEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEE��EENNTTSS  OOFF  ��EERRAALLAA  TTRRAANNSSPPOORRTT  DDEE��EELLOOPP��EENNTT  

FFIINNAANNCCEE  CCOORRPPOORRAATTIIOONN  LLII��IITTEEDD  FFOORR  TT��EE  PPEERRIIOODD  EENNDDEEDD  ����SSTT  ��AARRCC������������  
 
 
 

           ��RRee��eerrrreedd  ttoo  iinn  ppaarraaggrraapphh  ��  uunnddeerr  ‘‘RReeppoorrtt  oonn  OOtthheerr  LLeeggaall  aanndd  RReegguullaattoorryy  RReeqquuiirreemmeennttss’’  
sseeccttiioonn  oo��  oouurr  rreeppoorrtt  oo��  ee��eenn  ddaattee��   

 
           RReeppoorrtt  oonn  tthhee  DDiirreeccttiioonnss  iissssuueedd  bbyy  tthhee  CC  ��  AA��  uunnddeerr  sseeccttiioonn  ������������  oo��  tthhee  CCoommppaanniieess  AAcctt��  ��������  

 
           SSLL  NNOO  DDIIRREECCTTIIOONNSS  RREEPPLLIIEESS  

 

� 

�hether the Company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions 
through IT system� I� yes� the implications 
processing o� accounting transactions outside 
IT system on the integrity o� the accounts 
along �ith the �inancial implications� i� any� 
may be stated� 

The Company has no �oolproo� IT 
system in place to process all the 
accounting transactions� The 
system in place is sub�ect to 
historical data tampering�  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

� 

�hether there is any restructuring o� an 
e�isting loan or cases o� �ai�er��rite o�� o� 
debts�loans�interest etc� made by a lender to 
the Company due to the company’s inability to 
repay the loan� I� yes� the �inancial impact may 
be stated� 

There has been no restructuring 
o� any e�isting loan or cases o� 
�ai�er��rite o�� o� 
debts�loans�interest etc� made 
by a lender to the Company 
during the year� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

� 

�hether �unds recei�ed�recei�able �or speci�ic 
schemes �rom Central�State agencies �ere 
properly accounted �or�utili�ed as per its 
terms and conditions� List the cases o� 
de�iation� 

The Company has not recei�ed 
any �unds during the year� �ence 
not applicable� 

 
 
 
 
 
  
   

            
 
 
 
Tri�andrum 
���������� 

          

 
 
AANNNNEE��UURREE  ––  CC  TTOO  TTHHEE  IINNDDEEPPEENNDDEENNTT  AAUUDDIITTOORRSS’’  RREEPPOORRTT  OOFF  EEVVEENN  DDAATTEE  OONN  
TTHHEE  SSTTAANNDDAA��OONNEE  FFIINNAANNCCIIAA��  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  OOFF  ��EERRAA��AA  TTRRAANNSSPPOORRTT  
DDEEVVEE��OOPPMMEENNTT  FFIINNAANNCCEE  CCOORRPPOORRAATTIIOONN      ��IIMMIITTEEDD      FFOORR      TTHHEE      PPEERRIIOODD  EENNDDEEDD  
����SSTT  MMAARRCCHH��  ��������  

 
Report on the Interna� Financia� Contro�s under C�ause (i) o� Su��section � o� Section ��� o� 
the Companies Act� ���� (“the Act”) 

 
�e ha�e audited the interna� �inancia� contro�s o�er �inancia� reporting o� �era�a Transport 
De�e�opment Finance Corporation �imited (“the Company”) as at ��st March ���� in 
con�unction �ith our audit o� the standa�one �inancia� statements o� the Company �or the 
year ended on that date 

 
 

Management’s Responsi�i�ity �or Interna� Financia� Contro�s 
 

The Company’s management is responsi��e �or esta��ishing and maintaining interna� 
�inancia� contro�s �ased on the interna� contro� o�er �inancia� reporting criteria esta��ished 
�y the Company considering the essentia� components o� interna� contro� stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit o� Interna� Financia� Contro�s o�er Financia� Reporting issued �y 
the Institute o� Chartered Accountants o� India (‘ICAI’). 

 
These responsi�i�ities inc�ude the design� imp�ementation and maintenance o� ade�uate 
interna� �inancia� contro�s that �ere operating e��ecti�e�y �or ensuring the order�y and 
e��icient conduct o� its �usiness� inc�uding adherence to company’s po�icies� the 
sa�eguarding o� its assets� the pre�ention and detection o� �rauds and errors� the accuracy 
and comp�eteness o� the accounting records� and the time�y preparation o� re�ia��e 
�inancia� in�ormation� as re�uired under the Companies Act� ����. 

 
Auditor’s Responsi�i�ity 

 
Our responsi�i�ity is to e�press an opinion on the Company�s interna� �inancia� contro�s 
o�er �inancia� reporting �ased on our audit. �e conducted our audit in accordance �ith the 
Guidance Note on Audit o� Interna� Financia� Contro�s o�er Financia� Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing� issued �y ICAI and deemed to �e 
prescri�ed under section ���(��) o� the Companies Act� ����� to the e�tent app�ica��e to 
an audit o� interna� �inancia� contro�s� �oth app�ica��e to an audit o� Interna� Financia� 
Contro�s and� �oth issued �y the Institute o� Chartered Accountants o� India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Notes re�uire that �e comp�y �ith ethica� re�uirements and 
p�an and per�orm the audit to o�tain reasona��e assurance a�out �hether ade�uate 
interna� �inancia� contro�s o�er �inancia� reporting �as esta��ished and maintained and i� 
such contro�s operated e��ecti�e�y in a�� materia� respects. 
 
Our audit in�o��es per�orming procedures to o�tain audit e�idence a�out the ade�uacy o� 
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the internal financial controls system over financial reportin� and their operatin� 
effectiveness� �ur audit of internal financial controls over financial reportin� included 
obtainin� an understandin� of internal financial controls over financial reportin�� assessin� 
the ris� that a material �ea�ness e�ists� and testin� and evaluatin� the desi�n and 
operatin� effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed ris�� �he procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s �ud�ment� includin� the assessment of the ris�s of 
material misstatement of the financial statements� �hether due to fraud or error� 

 
�e believe that the audit evidence �e have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reportin� 

 

�eanin� of �nternal �inancial Controls over �inancial �eportin� 
 

� company�s internal financial control over financial reportin� is a process desi�ned to 
provide reasonable assurance re�ardin� the reliability of financial reportin� and the 
preparation of financial statements for e�ternal purposes in accordance �ith �enerally 
accepted accountin� principles� � company�s internal financial control over financial 
reportin� includes those policies and procedures that ��� pertain to the maintenance of 
records that� in reasonable detail� accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company� ��� provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance �ith �enerally accepted accountin� principles� and that receipts and 
e�penditures of the company are bein� made only in accordance �ith authori�ations of 
mana�ement and directors of the company� and ��� provide reasonable assurance 
re�ardin� prevention or timely detection of unauthori�ed ac�uisition� use� or disposition of 
the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements� 

 
�nherent �imitations of �nternal �inancial Controls �ver �inancial �eportin� 

 
�ecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportin�� 
includin� the possibility of collusion or improper mana�ement override of controls� 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected� �lso� 
pro�ections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reportin� to 
future periods are sub�ect to the ris� that the internal financial control over financial 
reportin� may become inade�uate because of chan�es in conditions� or that the de�ree of 
compliance �ith the policies or procedures may deteriorate� 

 

�pinion 
 

�ccordin� to the information and e�planations �iven to us and based on our audit� the 
follo�in� material �ea�nesses have been identified as at �arch ��� ����� 

 
a� �here is material �ea�ness in maintenance of records relatin� to �i�ed deposit collected 
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�nherent �imitations of �nternal �inancial Controls �ver �inancial �eportin� 

 
�ecause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reportin�� 
includin� the possibility of collusion or improper mana�ement override of controls� 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected� �lso� 
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future periods are sub�ect to the ris� that the internal financial control over financial 
reportin� may become inade�uate because of chan�es in conditions� or that the de�ree of 
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�pinion 
 

�ccordin� to the information and e�planations �iven to us and based on our audit� the 
follo�in� material �ea�nesses have been identified as at �arch ��� ����� 

 
a� �here is material �ea�ness in maintenance of records relatin� to �i�ed deposit collected 

from public under �arious schemes like ��S� ���S� Salute etc as detailed below� 
 

i. The total balance of Fixed deposit in respect of indi�idual deposit holders as per 
subsidiary led�ers is not tallyin� with the consolidated balance of fixed deposit in the books 
of accounts (amount of fixed deposit as per books Rs.778.83 crore after exclusion of Rs.  
.35 �rore in relation to FD Suspense and Rs. 12.32 crore in relation to FD �ayable and as 
per subsidiary led�er is Rs. 35�.77crore and difference is Rs. 427.6�lakhs). 

 
 

Sl 
�o. 

Scheme As per Subsidiary 
�ed�er 

As per �ooks Difference 

 
1 

 
FD S����A� 

 
1����������.�� 

 
1����������.�� 

 
� 

 
2 

 
FD SA��T� 

 
57�����33.�� 

 
57�����33.�� 

 
� 

 
3 

 
FD ��S 

 
2�482�116�711.�� 

 
2�48�65�28��7�.�� 

 
(44�12�268.��) 

 
4 

 
FD ���S� 

 
1�����8�46��62.�� 

 
1�����1�71�567.�� 

 
 6�74�4�5.�� 

 
5 

 
FD ���S� 

 
         4�286�488�454.�� 

 
         4�272�277�21�.�� 

 
         14�211�235.�� 

  
T�TA� 

 
7�7��41�51�26�.�� 

 
7�783�677�775.�� 

 
1��4�73�485.�� 

 A�T� R����A�   (57�12�45�.��) 
    47�61��35.�� 

 
ii. The deposit accounted as ‘Term Deposit Auto Renewal’ (Rs. 57.12 lakh) in the books of 
accounts are not identifiable in the subsidiary led�ers maintained. 

 
iii. Fixed deposit are accounted under ‘FD Suspense Account’ ( Rs. 34.68 lakh) in the books 
of accounts for want of information about particulars of Fixed Deposit terms and 
conditions. 

 
b. There are se�eral transactions especially �ank transactions� the ori�in of which are not 
properly identified and hence accounted in ‘Suspense Account’ in the books of accounts. 
(Rs. 83.84 lakh) 
 
c. There is no reconciliation between TDS demand by �ncome Tax Department and the 
amount accounted in the books. 

 
d. The balances of indi�idual �oans �i�en to public under �onstruction �oan� �ousin� �oan� 
�ehicle �oan � �ersonal loan and �ther loan as disclosed in the books of accounts are not 
tallyin� with the subsidiary led�ers. 

 
e. The �ompany does not follow system of obtainin� confirmation and reconciliation of 
dues from tenants. 
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f� ��e �istorical data maintained in t�e software w�ic� contains t�e books of acco�nts can 
be tam�ered wit�� 

 
A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial 
control o�er financial re�ortin�, s�c� t�at t�ere is a reasonable �ossibility t�at a material 
misstatement of t�e com�any�s ann�al or interim financial statements will not be 
�re�ented or detected on a timely basis� 

 
�n o�r o�inion, based on t�e material weaknesses described abo�e on t�e ac�ie�ement of 
t�e ob�ecti�es of t�e control criteria, t�e �om�any �as not maintained, in all material 
res�ects, ade��ate internal financial controls o�er financial re�ortin� and s�c� internal 
financial controls o�er financial re�ortin� were not o�eratin� effecti�ely as of �arc� ��, 
����, based on t�e internal control o�er financial re�ortin� criteria establis�ed by t�e 
�om�any considerin� t�e essential com�onents of internal control stated in t�e ��idance 
�ote on A�dit of �nternal �inancial �ontrols ��er �inancial �e�ortin� iss�ed by t�e 
�nstit�te of ��artered Acco�ntants of �ndia� 

 
�e �a�e considered t�e material weaknesses identified and re�orted abo�e in determinin� 
t�e nat�re, timin�, and e�tent of a�dit tests a��lied in o�r a�dit of t�e standalone financial 
statements of t�e �om�any, and t�ese material weaknesses does not affect o�r o�inion on 
t�e standalone financial statements of t�e �om�any� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�ri�andr�m 
���������� 
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�ri�andr�m 
���������� 

( Amount  in Rs.) Rs.) Rs.) Rs.)

 Note No. As at 31st March 
2020

As at 31st March 2019

1 2 3 4
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Shareholders’ funds
(a) Share capital 3.1 43,83,00,000             43,83,00,000                 
(b) Reserves and surplus 3.2 (2,90,50,18,868)         (2,11,15,07,134)             

2 Non-current liabilities
(a) Long-term borrowings 3.3 3,94,20,26,629          5,46,56,89,950               
(b) Other Long term liabilities 3.4 38,85,79,123             37,55,91,804                 
(c) Long-term provisions 3.5 3,47,14,20,536          3,50,04,68,062               
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 3.6 -                           -                               

3 Current liabilities
(a) Other current liabilities 3.7 8,13,11,42,831          8,27,34,63,060               
(b) Short-term provisions 3.8 44,57,590                 89,09,986                      

 13,47,09,07,841     15,95,09,15,728          
II. ASSETS

Non-current assets
1 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment 3.9 85,25,765                 89,73,980                      
(ii) Intangible assets 3.9 2,11,94,98,893          2,20,45,18,209               

(iii) Capital work-in-progress
(iv) Intangible assets under development

(b) Non-current investments 3.10 1,10,79,000               1,10,79,000                   
(c) Long-term loans and advances 3.11 6,48,02,24,114          1,79,51,49,322               
(d) Other non-current assets 3.12 30,11,21,665             30,24,78,575                 
(e) Deferred tax Asset (Net) 3.6 59,85,76,794             62,98,53,759                 

2 Current assets
(a) Current investments
(a) Inventories
(a) Trade receivables 3.13 2,43,07,809               1,38,37,957                   
(b) Cash and bank balance 3.14 95,76,18,912             6,16,26,19,757               
(c) Short-term loans and advances 3.15 2,89,43,24,199          4,79,09,10,126               
(d) Other current assets 3.16 7,56,30,690               3,14,95,044                   

TOTAL 13,47,09,07,841     15,95,09,15,728          
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1,2,3&4

For and on behalf of Board As per our report of even date

Thiruvananthapuram
25.05.2022

         Dr.B.Ashok.IAS                                          Dr.Chidambara Iyer.J
Chairman & Managing Director                              Company Secretary

KERALA TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd Office : Level 8(6th Floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud , Thiruvananthapuram - 695014

 Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020

Particulars



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd.38

( Amount  in  Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. )

Note 
No.

For the year ended 
31st March 2020

For the year ended 
31st March 2019

I. Income:
       Revenue from Operations 3.17 17,61,03,399                  1,23,23,84,114               

II. Other income 3.18 48,16,22,346                  17,07,80,559                  

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 65,77,25,745                1,40,31,64,673             

IV. Expenses:
     Employee benefits expense 3.19 2,13,70,764                    2,49,74,215                    
     Finance costs 3.20 1,21,73,88,324               1,47,79,26,442               
     Depreciation and amortization expense 3.9 8,62,29,580                    8,47,00,633                    
     Other expenses 3.21 9,10,50,514                    6,28,56,362                    
     Provisions and Write offs 3.22 39,21,333                      3,01,38,45,926               

Total expenses 1,41,99,60,515             4,66,43,03,579             

V.
Profit before exceptional and extraordinary items 
and tax (III-IV) (76,22,34,769)               (3,26,11,38,905)            

Extraordinary Items -                                -                                

VI. Profit before tax (V-VI) (76,22,34,769)           (3,26,11,38,905)            

VII. Tax expense:
     Current tax -                                

MAT Credit Entitlement -                                
     Deferred tax 3,12,76,965                    (84,80,86,628)                 

 (Excess) or Short provision relating to prior years 3.23

VIII. Profit (Loss) for the period (79,35,11,734)               (2,41,30,52,277)            
IX. Earnings Per Equity Share : 3.24

      Basic Earnings per equity share (1,810)                            (5,505)                            
      Diluted Earnings per equity share (1,810)                            (5,505)                            
      Face Value per equity share 1,000                             1,000                             
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1,2,3&4

For and on behalf of Board As per our report of even date

Thiruvananthapuram
25.05.2022

Chairman & Managing Director                   Company Secretary

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars

KERALA TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd Office : Level 8(6th Floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud , Thiruvananthapuram - 695014

         Dr.B.Ashok.IAS                                   Dr.Chidambara Iyer.J
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1,2,3&4

For and on behalf of Board As per our report of even date

Thiruvananthapuram
25.05.2022

Chairman & Managing Director                   Company Secretary

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars

KERALA TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd Office : Level 8(6th Floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud , Thiruvananthapuram - 695014

         Dr.B.Ashok.IAS                                   Dr.Chidambara Iyer.J

( Amount  in Rs.    )

 For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

 For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (Loss)/ Profit Before Tax (76,22,34,769)              (3,26,11,38,905)       
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and Amortization 8,62,29,580             8,47,00,633              
Finance Cost 33,24,99,998           30,03,56,640            
Profit or loss on sale of assets -                          -                           
Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets -                          -                           
Provision for Doubtful Projects -                          -                           
Provision for Gratuity and other Employee benefits -                          -                           
Dividend income (13,50,000)              (12,50,000)                
Interest income (35,91,29,034)          5,82,50,544                   (2,52,90,623)             35,85,16,650              

Operating (Loss)/ Profit before Working Capital Change (70,39,84,225)              (2,90,26,22,255)       

Adjustment for:
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables (1,04,69,852)           (73,05,134)                
Decrease/(Increase) loans and advances and other assets (2,83,12,67,601)       23,06,88,31,882       
Increase/(Decrease) in liabilities and provisions (1,68,64,96,151)       (4,52,82,33,605)             (14,12,78,59,088)      8,93,36,67,660           

Cash used in operations (5,23,22,17,830)           6,03,10,45,405         
Income tax paid -                                -                             

NET CASH (USED IN)/ FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,23,22,17,830)           6,03,10,45,405         

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed assets, Changes in work in progress (10,20,834)              (7,94,35,561)             
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets -                          -                           
Asset wrongly booked in previous year rectified 2,58,783                 2,10,038                   
Dividend income 13,50,000                12,50,000                 
Interest income 35,91,29,034           35,97,16,983                 2,52,90,623              (5,26,84,900)               

NET CASH FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 35,97,16,983               (5,26,84,900)             

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid during the year -                          -                           
Dividend Tax paid during the year -                          -                                -                           
Finance Cost (33,24,99,998)          (30,03,56,640)           

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (33,24,99,998)              (30,03,56,640)           

NET (DECREASE)/ INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(5,20,50,00,844)           5,67,80,03,865         

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,16,26,19,757              48,46,15,892              

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
(Refer Note No.3.14 below) 95,76,18,912               6,16,26,19,757         

For and on behalf of Board As per our report of even date

         Dr.B.Ashok.IAS                                            Dr.Chidambara Iyer.J
Chairman & Managing Director                                Company Secretary

Thiruvananthapuram
25.05.2022

KERALA TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Regd Office : Level 8 (6th Floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud , Thiruvananthapuram - 695014.

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2020

PARTICULARS
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 
 

1. Corporate Information 
Kerala Transport Development and Finance Corporation Limited is an NBFC situated at level 8, 
6thFloor of Trans-towers, Thiruvananthapuram - 695014 and is fully owned by Government of Kerala.  
The Corporation is primarily engaged in extending financial assistance to the transport sector of the 
State. The other activities of the Corporation are partially providing housing/personal finance and 
undertaking BOT projects for Government of Kerala. 
 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 
 

2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  The 
financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention as a going concern. 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed 
in the previous year. 
 

2.2 Use of estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Policies requires 
the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management 
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future 
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised. 
 

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The 
cost of Property, Plant & Equipments comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any 
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), and any 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on 
Property, Plant & Equipments after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Depreciation is provided 
on pro rata basis for property, plant and equipment after providing 5 % residual value and on written down 
value method on the useful life as specified in Part-C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on those 
assets whose useful lives are determined based on the technical evaluation made by the company and in the 
manner provided therein. 

        Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life considering the terms of business and purchase 
agreements on straight line method as below.                                                                                                          
 
Right in Trans-tower - 30 Years, Other BOT Assets - 30 Years, Software - 6 Years.  
 
The factors that played a significant role in the estimated useful life of the assets are based on the period that 
would be necessary for the company to recover the total project cost incurred together with interest in the form 
of lease rentals as per agreement with the party. 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020 
 

1. Corporate Information 
Kerala Transport Development and Finance Corporation Limited is an NBFC situated at level 8, 
6thFloor of Trans-towers, Thiruvananthapuram - 695014 and is fully owned by Government of Kerala.  
The Corporation is primarily engaged in extending financial assistance to the transport sector of the 
State. The other activities of the Corporation are partially providing housing/personal finance and 
undertaking BOT projects for Government of Kerala. 
 

2 Significant Accounting Policies 
 

2.1 Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles in India to comply with the Accounting Standards notified under the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  The 
financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention as a going concern. 
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed 
in the previous year. 
 

2.2 Use of estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Policies requires 
the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year.  The Management 
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.  Future 
results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are 
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised. 
 

2.3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The 
cost of Property, Plant & Equipments comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any 
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), and any 
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure on 
Property, Plant & Equipments after its purchase is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Depreciation is provided 
on pro rata basis for property, plant and equipment after providing 5 % residual value and on written down 
value method on the useful life as specified in Part-C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, except on those 
assets whose useful lives are determined based on the technical evaluation made by the company and in the 
manner provided therein. 

        Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life considering the terms of business and purchase 
agreements on straight line method as below.                                                                                                          
 
Right in Trans-tower - 30 Years, Other BOT Assets - 30 Years, Software - 6 Years.  
 
The factors that played a significant role in the estimated useful life of the assets are based on the period that 
would be necessary for the company to recover the total project cost incurred together with interest in the form 
of lease rentals as per agreement with the party. 
 
 
 

2.4  Impairment of Assets  
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating 
unit (“CGU”). If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date 
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the revised recoverable amount, subject to maximum of the depreciated 
historical cost. 

2.5 Investments 

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. A provision of diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than 
temporary, in the value of Long Term Investments. Any reduction in the investment and any reversals of such 
reductions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current Investments, if any, are stated at 
lower of the cost or fair market value.                   

2.6 Revenue Recognition 

Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis in accordance with 
Accounting Standard AS-9 ‘Revenue Recognition’. Income arising out of Non-banking business transactions has 
been recognized before applying the provisions of NBFC Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, since 
such norms are not applicable to the Government Company as defined under clause 45 of section 2 of the 
Companies Act 2013 for the year ended 31st March 2019.Upfront / processing fees are recovered and recognised 
at the time of disbursement of loan. In case of default on the repayment of loans, overdue and penal interest is 
charged only on their realisation.  
 
In case of the Loans, against which Recovery proceedings have been initiated, interest income is recognised on 
realisation of interest. 
 
BOT Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
 
Income from dividend is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the right to receive is 
established. 

2.7 Employee Benefits 

Company’s contributions in the year towards government administered Provident and other funds are charged 
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees. Contribution as applicable to the employees on deputation is paid to the respective Parent 
Department. However the liability in respect of gratuity and encashment of earned leave to the employees are 
provided in books of account on the basis of probable liability that may arise if the employee retire at the end of 
the year and not on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by Accounting standard 15, issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
 

2.8 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals for future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 
based on the available information. 
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2.4  Impairment of Assets  
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating 
unit (“CGU”). If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date 
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the revised recoverable amount, subject to maximum of the depreciated 
historical cost. 

2.5 Investments 

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. A provision of diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than 
temporary, in the value of Long Term Investments. Any reduction in the investment and any reversals of such 
reductions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current Investments, if any, are stated at 
lower of the cost or fair market value.                   

2.6 Revenue Recognition 

Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis in accordance with 
Accounting Standard AS-9 ‘Revenue Recognition’. Income arising out of Non-banking business transactions has 
been recognized before applying the provisions of NBFC Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, since 
such norms are not applicable to the Government Company as defined under clause 45 of section 2 of the 
Companies Act 2013 for the year ended 31st March 2019.Upfront / processing fees are recovered and recognised 
at the time of disbursement of loan. In case of default on the repayment of loans, overdue and penal interest is 
charged only on their realisation.  
 
In case of the Loans, against which Recovery proceedings have been initiated, interest income is recognised on 
realisation of interest. 
 
BOT Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
 
Income from dividend is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the right to receive is 
established. 

2.7 Employee Benefits 

Company’s contributions in the year towards government administered Provident and other funds are charged 
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees. Contribution as applicable to the employees on deputation is paid to the respective Parent 
Department. However the liability in respect of gratuity and encashment of earned leave to the employees are 
provided in books of account on the basis of probable liability that may arise if the employee retire at the end of 
the year and not on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by Accounting standard 15, issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
 

2.8 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals for future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 
based on the available information. 
 
 
 

 

2.9 Taxes on income 

Tax expenses are the aggregate of current tax and deferred tax charged or credited in the statement of profit and 
loss for the year. 
 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as determined in accordance with 
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and excess or short provision for tax 
relating previous years.  
 
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the 
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting 
date.  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences.  Deferred tax assets in respect of 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there 
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
timing differences of other items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which these can be realised.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such 
items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable 
right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their realisability. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is 
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 
In respect of disputed income tax demands, where the company is in appeal, provision for tax is made when the 
matter is finally decided. 

2.10 Earnings Per Share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with AS 20, Earnings Per Share 
issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed 
by dividing net profit / loss attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for 
the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding 
during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. During the year there is no adjustments in respect of 
dilution of equity shares, hence Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are same. 
 

2.11 Provisions and Contingences 
 

The Company recognizes provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. In cases where the available information indicates that the 
loss on the contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a 
disclosure is made in the financial statements. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current management estimates. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be 
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 
 
A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resource is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
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2.4  Impairment of Assets  
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. 
If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating 
unit (“CGU”). If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset 
belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date 
there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is 
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the revised recoverable amount, subject to maximum of the depreciated 
historical cost. 

2.5 Investments 

Long Term Investments are stated at cost. A provision of diminution is made to recognise a decline, other than 
temporary, in the value of Long Term Investments. Any reduction in the investment and any reversals of such 
reductions are charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current Investments, if any, are stated at 
lower of the cost or fair market value.                   

2.6 Revenue Recognition 

Interest income is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on an accrual basis in accordance with 
Accounting Standard AS-9 ‘Revenue Recognition’. Income arising out of Non-banking business transactions has 
been recognized before applying the provisions of NBFC Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions 2007, since 
such norms are not applicable to the Government Company as defined under clause 45 of section 2 of the 
Companies Act 2013 for the year ended 31st March 2019.Upfront / processing fees are recovered and recognised 
at the time of disbursement of loan. In case of default on the repayment of loans, overdue and penal interest is 
charged only on their realisation.  
 
In case of the Loans, against which Recovery proceedings have been initiated, interest income is recognised on 
realisation of interest. 
 
BOT Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation 
and the revenue can be reliably measured. 
 
Income from dividend is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as and when the right to receive is 
established. 

2.7 Employee Benefits 

Company’s contributions in the year towards government administered Provident and other funds are charged 
as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the 
employees. Contribution as applicable to the employees on deputation is paid to the respective Parent 
Department. However the liability in respect of gratuity and encashment of earned leave to the employees are 
provided in books of account on the basis of probable liability that may arise if the employee retire at the end of 
the year and not on the basis of actuarial valuation as required by Accounting standard 15, issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
 

2.8 Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit or (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals for future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 
based on the available information. 
 
 
 

 

2.9 Taxes on income 

Tax expenses are the aggregate of current tax and deferred tax charged or credited in the statement of profit and 
loss for the year. 
 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the period as determined in accordance with 
the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and excess or short provision for tax 
relating previous years.  
 
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable income and the 
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.  
Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted as at the reporting 
date.  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences.  Deferred tax assets in respect of 
unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward of losses are recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there 
will be sufficient future taxable income available to realise such assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised for 
timing differences of other items only to the extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable 
income will be available against which these can be realised.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if such 
items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the Company has a legally enforceable 
right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date for their realisability. 
 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the 
form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the 
Company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is 
probable that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 
In respect of disputed income tax demands, where the company is in appeal, provision for tax is made when the 
matter is finally decided. 

2.10 Earnings Per Share 

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per equity share in accordance with AS 20, Earnings Per Share 
issued, by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Basic earnings per equity share have been computed 
by dividing net profit / loss attributable to the equity share holders for the year by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share have been computed by dividing 
the net profit attributable to the equity share holders after giving impact of dilutive potential equity shares for 
the year by the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding 
during the year, except where the results are anti-dilutive. During the year there is no adjustments in respect of 
dilution of equity shares, hence Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are same. 
 

2.11 Provisions and Contingences 
 

The Company recognizes provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that 
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. In cases where the available information indicates that the 
loss on the contingency is reasonably possible but the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a 
disclosure is made in the financial statements. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current management estimates. If it is no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be 
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 
 
A disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. 
 
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resource is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 

 
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. 
 

2.12 Previous year Figures 
 
The figures for the previous year have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary to make them 
comparable with the current period figures. 
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  NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3.1   SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Authorised:
5,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each 50,00,00,000             50,00,00,000             
[ Previous year 5,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each ]
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,38,300 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each 43,83,00,000                43,83,00,000                
[ Previous year 4,38,300 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each ]

TOTAL 43,83,00,000             43,83,00,000             

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting year:-

As at As at 
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,38,300                    4,38,300                    

Add :-
Shares issued during the year -                              -                              

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,38,300                    4,38,300                    

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :-

No. of 
Shares held

% 
of Holding 

 No. of 
Shares held 

 % 
of Holding  

4,38,300 100.00 4,38,300                      100                             

3.2   RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
General Reserve - Opening Balance 4,75,82,344                 4,75,82,344                 

4,75,82,344               4,75,82,344               

Surplus - Opening balance (2,15,90,89,478)            25,39,62,799                
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year (79,35,11,734)               (2,41,30,52,277)            
(-)  Dividend Paid -                              -                              
(-) Dividend Distribution Tax on Equity dividend -                              -                              
(-) Interim Dividends
(-) Transfer to Reserves -                              -                              

(2,95,26,01,212)         (2,15,90,89,478)         

TOTAL (2,90,50,18,868)         (2,11,15,07,134)         

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

Name of Shareholder 
 As at 31 March 2019

Equity Shares
As at 31 March 2018

Governor of Kerala and  3 Nominees 
of Government of Kerala
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  NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

3.1   SHARE CAPITAL
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Authorised:
5,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each 50,00,00,000             50,00,00,000             
[ Previous year 5,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each ]
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
4,38,300 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each 43,83,00,000                43,83,00,000                
[ Previous year 4,38,300 Equity Shares of ₹ 1,000/- each ]

TOTAL 43,83,00,000             43,83,00,000             

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the end of the reporting year:-

As at As at 
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,38,300                    4,38,300                    

Add :-
Shares issued during the year -                              -                              

Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,38,300                    4,38,300                    

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company :-

No. of 
Shares held

% 
of Holding 

 No. of 
Shares held 

 % 
of Holding  

4,38,300 100.00 4,38,300                      100                             

3.2   RESERVES AND SURPLUS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
General Reserve - Opening Balance 4,75,82,344                 4,75,82,344                 

4,75,82,344               4,75,82,344               

Surplus - Opening balance (2,15,90,89,478)            25,39,62,799                
(+) Net Profit/(Net Loss) For the current year (79,35,11,734)               (2,41,30,52,277)            
(-)  Dividend Paid -                              -                              
(-) Dividend Distribution Tax on Equity dividend -                              -                              
(-) Interim Dividends
(-) Transfer to Reserves -                              -                              

(2,95,26,01,212)         (2,15,90,89,478)         

TOTAL (2,90,50,18,868)         (2,11,15,07,134)         

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

Name of Shareholder 
 As at 31 March 2019

Equity Shares
As at 31 March 2018

Governor of Kerala and  3 Nominees 
of Government of Kerala

3.3   LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Deposits  
Fixed Deposits from public 3,94,20,26,629             5,46,56,89,950             

TOTAL 3,94,20,26,629          5,46,56,89,950          

(i) the above loans are covered under the general purpose guarantee given by the Government of Kerala
(ii) the rate of interest implicit in the above is in the range of 7.25% to 10.50% p.a.

(iii) 

(iv) there were no default in repayment of these deposits and interest thereon.

(v) 

3.4   OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Others
EMD and Security Deposit 28,32,90,958                26,85,07,135                
Retention Payable 1,43,04,527                 1,83,19,110                 
Sundry creditors for Fixed Assets 37,33,070                    37,33,070                    
Transtower expenses payable to GOK 5,83,103                      5,83,103                      
Suspense Account 83,83,750                    20,16,102                    
Other Long Term Liability 7,82,83,715                 8,24,33,284                 

TOTAL 38,85,79,123             37,55,91,804             

3.5   LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
Provision for Leave Encashment 20,66,645                    12,76,640                    
Provision for Gratuity 43,44,142                    38,03,654                    
Provision For Rent Deposit 1,70,400                      1,70,400                      
Provision for Doubtful Tenents 2,02,414                      62,723                         
Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets 3,46,46,36,935             3,49,51,54,645             

TOTAL 3,47,14,20,536          3,50,04,68,062          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

fixed deposits include a suspense amount of Rs.34,67,758- for which application is yet to be received from the 
concerned parties.

deposits are repaid on maturity and interest monthly and/or quarterly. The period of deposits ranges from 12 to 60 
months

fixed deposits include an amount of Rs.57,12,450/- classified as term deposit auto renewal which are matured term 
deposits yet to be renewed/closed for want of necessary instructions from the concerned deposit holders.

(vi) 

Suspense account represents the net of balance which is not adjusted/transferred to respective heads due to lack of 
supporting evidence.

PARTICULARS
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3.3   LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Deposits  
Fixed Deposits from public 3,94,20,26,629             5,46,56,89,950             

TOTAL 3,94,20,26,629          5,46,56,89,950          

(i) the above loans are covered under the general purpose guarantee given by the Government of Kerala
(ii) the rate of interest implicit in the above is in the range of 7.25% to 10.50% p.a.

(iii) 

(iv) there were no default in repayment of these deposits and interest thereon.

(v) 

3.4   OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Others
EMD and Security Deposit 28,32,90,958                26,85,07,135                
Retention Payable 1,43,04,527                 1,83,19,110                 
Sundry creditors for Fixed Assets 37,33,070                    37,33,070                    
Transtower expenses payable to GOK 5,83,103                      5,83,103                      
Suspense Account 83,83,750                    20,16,102                    
Other Long Term Liability 7,82,83,715                 8,24,33,284                 

TOTAL 38,85,79,123             37,55,91,804             

3.5   LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
Provision for Leave Encashment 20,66,645                    12,76,640                    
Provision for Gratuity 43,44,142                    38,03,654                    
Provision For Rent Deposit 1,70,400                      1,70,400                      
Provision for Doubtful Tenents 2,02,414                      62,723                         
Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets 3,46,46,36,935             3,49,51,54,645             

TOTAL 3,47,14,20,536          3,50,04,68,062          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

fixed deposits include a suspense amount of Rs.34,67,758- for which application is yet to be received from the 
concerned parties.

deposits are repaid on maturity and interest monthly and/or quarterly. The period of deposits ranges from 12 to 60 
months

fixed deposits include an amount of Rs.57,12,450/- classified as term deposit auto renewal which are matured term 
deposits yet to be renewed/closed for want of necessary instructions from the concerned deposit holders.

(vi) 

Suspense account represents the net of balance which is not adjusted/transferred to respective heads due to lack of 
supporting evidence.

PARTICULARS

3.6   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ASSET (NET)
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
Deferred Tax Asset

Disallowances (1,06,13,15,375)            (1,06,13,15,375)            
Provisions - -

Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation 46,27,38,581                43,14,61,616                

TOTAL (59,85,76,794)            (62,98,53,759)            

DTL relates to timing difference of depreciation effect @30.9% on Rs.
DTA relates to timing differences on  disallowances @30.9% on Rs.
duly adjusted for opening DTL

3.7   OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Current maturities of long term borrowings :
Deposits from Public 3,97,40,77,080             4,29,68,35,388             
Term  Loan DCB 3,50,00,00,000             3,50,00,00,000             
Loan From KGB 29,53,00,000                

Interest accrued but not due 30,73,70,308                41,40,88,795                
Others;

Statutory Liabilities 2,70,72,640                 3,91,44,091                 
Expenses Payables 1,30,44,923                 91,53,118                    
EMD Payable 71,60,069                    39,46,068                    
Other Liabilities 71,17,811                    1,02,95,600                 

TOTAL 8,13,11,42,831          8,27,34,63,060          

3.8   SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Dividend Payable -                              -                              
Dividend Tax Payable -                              -                              
Provision for Pension Contribution
Provision for  CSR (22,516)                       35,09,484                    
Provision for gratuity -                              2,29,980                      
Provision for leave encashment 2,27,091                      9,17,506                      
Pay Revision Arrear
Provision for Staff Expenses 29,670                         29,670                         
Provision For doubtful Project 42,23,345                    42,23,345                    

TOTAL 44,57,590                  89,09,985                  

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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3.3   LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Deposits  
Fixed Deposits from public 3,94,20,26,629             5,46,56,89,950             

TOTAL 3,94,20,26,629          5,46,56,89,950          

(i) the above loans are covered under the general purpose guarantee given by the Government of Kerala
(ii) the rate of interest implicit in the above is in the range of 7.25% to 10.50% p.a.

(iii) 

(iv) there were no default in repayment of these deposits and interest thereon.

(v) 

3.4   OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Others
EMD and Security Deposit 28,32,90,958                26,85,07,135                
Retention Payable 1,43,04,527                 1,83,19,110                 
Sundry creditors for Fixed Assets 37,33,070                    37,33,070                    
Transtower expenses payable to GOK 5,83,103                      5,83,103                      
Suspense Account 83,83,750                    20,16,102                    
Other Long Term Liability 7,82,83,715                 8,24,33,284                 

TOTAL 38,85,79,123             37,55,91,804             

3.5   LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
Provision for Leave Encashment 20,66,645                    12,76,640                    
Provision for Gratuity 43,44,142                    38,03,654                    
Provision For Rent Deposit 1,70,400                      1,70,400                      
Provision for Doubtful Tenents 2,02,414                      62,723                         
Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets 3,46,46,36,935             3,49,51,54,645             

TOTAL 3,47,14,20,536          3,50,04,68,062          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

fixed deposits include a suspense amount of Rs.34,67,758- for which application is yet to be received from the 
concerned parties.

deposits are repaid on maturity and interest monthly and/or quarterly. The period of deposits ranges from 12 to 60 
months

fixed deposits include an amount of Rs.57,12,450/- classified as term deposit auto renewal which are matured term 
deposits yet to be renewed/closed for want of necessary instructions from the concerned deposit holders.

(vi) 

Suspense account represents the net of balance which is not adjusted/transferred to respective heads due to lack of 
supporting evidence.

PARTICULARS

3.6   DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES/ASSET (NET)
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

 
Deferred Tax Asset

Disallowances (1,06,13,15,375)            (1,06,13,15,375)            
Provisions - -

Deferred Tax Liability
Depreciation 46,27,38,581                43,14,61,616                

TOTAL (59,85,76,794)            (62,98,53,759)            

DTL relates to timing difference of depreciation effect @30.9% on Rs.
DTA relates to timing differences on  disallowances @30.9% on Rs.
duly adjusted for opening DTL

3.7   OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Current maturities of long term borrowings :
Deposits from Public 3,97,40,77,080             4,29,68,35,388             
Term  Loan DCB 3,50,00,00,000             3,50,00,00,000             
Loan From KGB 29,53,00,000                

Interest accrued but not due 30,73,70,308                41,40,88,795                
Others;

Statutory Liabilities 2,70,72,640                 3,91,44,091                 
Expenses Payables 1,30,44,923                 91,53,118                    
EMD Payable 71,60,069                    39,46,068                    
Other Liabilities 71,17,811                    1,02,95,600                 

TOTAL 8,13,11,42,831          8,27,34,63,060          

3.8   SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Dividend Payable -                              -                              
Dividend Tax Payable -                              -                              
Provision for Pension Contribution
Provision for  CSR (22,516)                       35,09,484                    
Provision for gratuity -                              2,29,980                      
Provision for leave encashment 2,27,091                      9,17,506                      
Pay Revision Arrear
Provision for Staff Expenses 29,670                         29,670                         
Provision For doubtful Project 42,23,345                    42,23,345                    

TOTAL 44,57,590                  89,09,985                  

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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3.10   NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

In fully paid up Equity shares
a. Quoted - valued at cost

State Bank of India 20,79,000                    20,79,000                    

b. Unquoted - valued at cost
Cochin International Airport Limited 90,00,000                    90,00,000                    

TOTAL 1,10,79,000               1,10,79,000               
I   Market value of quoted shares in SBI is at Rs.320.55 per share as at the close of the year 
Il.  Aggregate market value of quoted shares is Rs.97.04 Lakhs.

3.11  LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Secured, considred good
(a) Loans and Advances to related parties;

KSRTC Consortium Loan 1,40,78,76,854             -                              
Loan to Kerala State Road Transport Corporation 4,52,89,54,803             1,19,65,84,897             
Advance to BOT Projects of Government of Kerala 42,23,345                    42,23,345                    
Tagore theatre modernaization 2,10,60,148                 2,34,01,814                 

(b) Others
Construction Loan -                              -                              
Housing Loans 2,97,97,395                 4,59,23,375                 
Vehicle Loans 61,87,878                    79,86,253                    
Personal Loans 59,70,882                    1,06,48,396                 
Other Loans 20,31,357                    14,35,101                    

Unsecured, considred good
Security Deposits 28,12,384                    17,21,987                    
Other Advances 60,12,478                    60,13,219                    

Doubtful
Construction Loan 29,99,83,886                42,63,19,002                
Housing Loans 1,34,76,209                 1,70,50,562                 
Vehicle Loans 4,50,63,971                 4,64,23,369                 
Personal Loans 10,67,72,524                74,18,001                    

TOTAL 6,48,02,24,114          1,79,51,49,322          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

[38830 Equity shares of Rs.1 each of SBI, Previously 17650 shares 
of SBT having a face value of ₹ 10 each, exchangd at 22 shares 
for every 10 shares held at the time of merger of SBT with SBI in 
April 2017  (These shares were acquired as 1465 Equity shares of 
₹100 each at a premium of ₹ 500 per share & 3000 Equity shares 
as rights issue at a face value of ₹ 10 each at a premium of ₹ 390 
per share)]

[4,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each & 100000 Equity shares as 
rights issue at a face value of Rs.10/- each with a premium of 
Rs.40/- per share)
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3.10   NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

In fully paid up Equity shares
a. Quoted - valued at cost

State Bank of India 20,79,000                    20,79,000                    

b. Unquoted - valued at cost
Cochin International Airport Limited 90,00,000                    90,00,000                    

TOTAL 1,10,79,000               1,10,79,000               
I   Market value of quoted shares in SBI is at Rs.320.55 per share as at the close of the year 
Il.  Aggregate market value of quoted shares is Rs.97.04 Lakhs.

3.11  LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Secured, considred good
(a) Loans and Advances to related parties;

KSRTC Consortium Loan 1,40,78,76,854             -                              
Loan to Kerala State Road Transport Corporation 4,52,89,54,803             1,19,65,84,897             
Advance to BOT Projects of Government of Kerala 42,23,345                    42,23,345                    
Tagore theatre modernaization 2,10,60,148                 2,34,01,814                 

(b) Others
Construction Loan -                              -                              
Housing Loans 2,97,97,395                 4,59,23,375                 
Vehicle Loans 61,87,878                    79,86,253                    
Personal Loans 59,70,882                    1,06,48,396                 
Other Loans 20,31,357                    14,35,101                    

Unsecured, considred good
Security Deposits 28,12,384                    17,21,987                    
Other Advances 60,12,478                    60,13,219                    

Doubtful
Construction Loan 29,99,83,886                42,63,19,002                
Housing Loans 1,34,76,209                 1,70,50,562                 
Vehicle Loans 4,50,63,971                 4,64,23,369                 
Personal Loans 10,67,72,524                74,18,001                    

TOTAL 6,48,02,24,114          1,79,51,49,322          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

[38830 Equity shares of Rs.1 each of SBI, Previously 17650 shares 
of SBT having a face value of ₹ 10 each, exchangd at 22 shares 
for every 10 shares held at the time of merger of SBT with SBI in 
April 2017  (These shares were acquired as 1465 Equity shares of 
₹100 each at a premium of ₹ 500 per share & 3000 Equity shares 
as rights issue at a face value of ₹ 10 each at a premium of ₹ 390 
per share)]

[4,00,000 Equity shares of ₹ 10 each & 100000 Equity shares as 
rights issue at a face value of Rs.10/- each with a premium of 
Rs.40/- per share)

3.12  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Long Term Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good -                              -                              
Doubtful 2,02,414                      1,28,863                      

(b) Others
Unsecured, considered good

Income Tax Refundable for AY 2015-16 34,80,870                    34,80,870                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2017-18 5,75,90,740                 5,75,90,740                 
Income tax and service tax Demand 15,22,48,448                15,22,48,448                
Centage Charges Receivable 1,02,37,602                 1,16,68,063                 
Prepaid Taxes (MAT Credit) 5,57,94,407                 5,57,94,407                 

Considered doubtful
Dividend Income Receivable 88,250                         88,250                         
Interest Receivable (transtower cost) 2,14,78,934                 2,14,78,934                 

TOTAL 30,11,21,665             30,24,78,575             

3.13   TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Unsecured, considered good 1,99,57,538                 42,89,652                    

Other Debts
Unsecured, considered good 43,50,271                    95,48,305                    

TOTAL 2,43,07,809               1,38,37,957               

3.14   CASH AND BANK BALANCE
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Other Bank Balance
In Current Accounts (8,71,61,314)                11,65,28,989                
In Deposit Accounts-Maturity with in 3 months 1,04,47,47,712             6,04,57,47,682             
Balance with Government of Kerala Treasury SB Account -                              2,95,340                      

(b) Cash & Cash Equivalants
   Cash on Hand 32,514                         47,745                         

TOTAL 95,76,18,912             6,16,26,19,757          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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3.12  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Long Term Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good -                              -                              
Doubtful 2,02,414                      1,28,863                      

(b) Others
Unsecured, considered good

Income Tax Refundable for AY 2015-16 34,80,870                    34,80,870                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2017-18 5,75,90,740                 5,75,90,740                 
Income tax and service tax Demand 15,22,48,448                15,22,48,448                
Centage Charges Receivable 1,02,37,602                 1,16,68,063                 
Prepaid Taxes (MAT Credit) 5,57,94,407                 5,57,94,407                 

Considered doubtful
Dividend Income Receivable 88,250                         88,250                         
Interest Receivable (transtower cost) 2,14,78,934                 2,14,78,934                 

TOTAL 30,11,21,665             30,24,78,575             

3.13   TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Unsecured, considered good 1,99,57,538                 42,89,652                    

Other Debts
Unsecured, considered good 43,50,271                    95,48,305                    

TOTAL 2,43,07,809               1,38,37,957               

3.14   CASH AND BANK BALANCE
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Other Bank Balance
In Current Accounts (8,71,61,314)                11,65,28,989                
In Deposit Accounts-Maturity with in 3 months 1,04,47,47,712             6,04,57,47,682             
Balance with Government of Kerala Treasury SB Account -                              2,95,340                      

(b) Cash & Cash Equivalants
   Cash on Hand 32,514                         47,745                         

TOTAL 95,76,18,912             6,16,26,19,757          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

3.15   SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

a.  Loans and Advances to related parties
   Secured, considered good

KSRTC Short Term Loan 3,32,36,83,156             
Current maturities of Loan Assets 3,00,00,000                 1,46,17,95,214             
Term Deposit With bank 2,85,63,00,000             

   Unsecured, considered good
b.  Others
   Secured, considered good

Current maturities of Loan Assets 32,35,777                    17,47,984                    
   Unsecured, considered good

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 2,82,837                      1,64,802                      
Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source 28,37,452                    24,63,435                    
Prepaid Expenses 16,68,132                    10,55,535                    
Prepaid Taxes

TOTAL 2,89,43,24,199          4,79,09,10,126          

3.16  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Income tax Refund for AY 2016-17 8,99,319                           8,99,319                      
Income tax Refund for AY 2018-19 38,14,084                         38,14,084                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2019-20 65,11,485                         65,11,485                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2020-21 3,13,39,492                      
Interest Receivable on Term Deposits 2,61,58,801                 1,02,16,882                 
Interest Receivable on Loan on Fd -                              -                              
Other current assets 69,07,509                    1,00,53,274                 

TOTAL 7,56,30,690               3,14,95,044               

3.17   Revenue from Operations
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Sale of Services
Income from Loan Assets 17,61,03,399                1,23,23,84,114             

TOTAL 17,61,03,399             1,23,23,84,114          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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3.12  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Long Term Trade Receivables
Unsecured, considered good -                              -                              
Doubtful 2,02,414                      1,28,863                      

(b) Others
Unsecured, considered good

Income Tax Refundable for AY 2015-16 34,80,870                    34,80,870                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2017-18 5,75,90,740                 5,75,90,740                 
Income tax and service tax Demand 15,22,48,448                15,22,48,448                
Centage Charges Receivable 1,02,37,602                 1,16,68,063                 
Prepaid Taxes (MAT Credit) 5,57,94,407                 5,57,94,407                 

Considered doubtful
Dividend Income Receivable 88,250                         88,250                         
Interest Receivable (transtower cost) 2,14,78,934                 2,14,78,934                 

TOTAL 30,11,21,665             30,24,78,575             

3.13   TRADE RECEIVABLES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Unsecured, considered good 1,99,57,538                 42,89,652                    

Other Debts
Unsecured, considered good 43,50,271                    95,48,305                    

TOTAL 2,43,07,809               1,38,37,957               

3.14   CASH AND BANK BALANCE
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) Other Bank Balance
In Current Accounts (8,71,61,314)                11,65,28,989                
In Deposit Accounts-Maturity with in 3 months 1,04,47,47,712             6,04,57,47,682             
Balance with Government of Kerala Treasury SB Account -                              2,95,340                      

(b) Cash & Cash Equivalants
   Cash on Hand 32,514                         47,745                         

TOTAL 95,76,18,912             6,16,26,19,757          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

3.15   SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

a.  Loans and Advances to related parties
   Secured, considered good

KSRTC Short Term Loan 3,32,36,83,156             
Current maturities of Loan Assets 3,00,00,000                 1,46,17,95,214             
Term Deposit With bank 2,85,63,00,000             

   Unsecured, considered good
b.  Others
   Secured, considered good

Current maturities of Loan Assets 32,35,777                    17,47,984                    
   Unsecured, considered good

Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 2,82,837                      1,64,802                      
Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at Source 28,37,452                    24,63,435                    
Prepaid Expenses 16,68,132                    10,55,535                    
Prepaid Taxes

TOTAL 2,89,43,24,199          4,79,09,10,126          

3.16  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Income tax Refund for AY 2016-17 8,99,319                           8,99,319                      
Income tax Refund for AY 2018-19 38,14,084                         38,14,084                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2019-20 65,11,485                         65,11,485                    
Income tax Refund for AY 2020-21 3,13,39,492                      
Interest Receivable on Term Deposits 2,61,58,801                 1,02,16,882                 
Interest Receivable on Loan on Fd -                              -                              
Other current assets 69,07,509                    1,00,53,274                 

TOTAL 7,56,30,690               3,14,95,044               

3.17   Revenue from Operations
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Sale of Services
Income from Loan Assets 17,61,03,399                1,23,23,84,114             

TOTAL 17,61,03,399             1,23,23,84,114          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

3.18  OTHER INCOME
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Income from Leasing 12,10,92,544                9,67,67,836                 
Centage Charges Received -                              -                              
Dividend Received 13,50,000                    12,50,000                    
Interest Received 35,91,29,034                2,52,90,623                 
Profit on sale of Batteries -                              -                              
Prior Period Income (Refer Note No.3.26(b) 4,74,12,014                 
Miscellaneous Receipts 50,768                         60,087                         

TOTAL 48,16,22,346             17,07,80,559             

3.19   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Salaries and Allowances 1,68,24,451                 1,98,11,212                 
Stipend to Trainees 6,41,945                      6,57,744                      
Employer Contribution to EPF 16,19,482                    12,82,670                    
Employer Contribution to ESI 3,09,100                      1,86,963                      
Pension Contribution 51,480                         12,55,969                    
Leave Surrender 11,66,878                    11,77,149                    
Gratuity 6,22,996                      4,42,398                      
Others 163                             -                              
Staff Welfare 1,34,269                      1,60,110                      

TOTAL 2,13,70,764               2,49,74,215               

3.20   FINANCE COSTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Interest Expenses :
Interest paid on Fixed Deposits 79,83,13,623                1,05,53,77,091             

Other Borrowing Cost :
Commission & Brokerage 1,03,71,798                 1,39,43,111                 
Gurantee Fee paid to GOK 7,61,12,808                 10,81,81,954                
Interest Expenses On Loan  DCB 33,24,99,998                30,03,56,640                
Interest on Investors Education Protection Fund 6,147                          
Bank Charges 83,949                         67,646                         

TOTAL 1,21,73,88,324          1,47,79,26,442          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS
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3.18  OTHER INCOME
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Income from Leasing 12,10,92,544                9,67,67,836                 
Centage Charges Received -                              -                              
Dividend Received 13,50,000                    12,50,000                    
Interest Received 35,91,29,034                2,52,90,623                 
Profit on sale of Batteries -                              -                              
Prior Period Income (Refer Note No.3.26(b) 4,74,12,014                 
Miscellaneous Receipts 50,768                         60,087                         

TOTAL 48,16,22,346             17,07,80,559             

3.19   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Salaries and Allowances 1,68,24,451                 1,98,11,212                 
Stipend to Trainees 6,41,945                      6,57,744                      
Employer Contribution to EPF 16,19,482                    12,82,670                    
Employer Contribution to ESI 3,09,100                      1,86,963                      
Pension Contribution 51,480                         12,55,969                    
Leave Surrender 11,66,878                    11,77,149                    
Gratuity 6,22,996                      4,42,398                      
Others 163                             -                              
Staff Welfare 1,34,269                      1,60,110                      

TOTAL 2,13,70,764               2,49,74,215               

3.20   FINANCE COSTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Interest Expenses :
Interest paid on Fixed Deposits 79,83,13,623                1,05,53,77,091             

Other Borrowing Cost :
Commission & Brokerage 1,03,71,798                 1,39,43,111                 
Gurantee Fee paid to GOK 7,61,12,808                 10,81,81,954                
Interest Expenses On Loan  DCB 33,24,99,998                30,03,56,640                
Interest on Investors Education Protection Fund 6,147                          
Bank Charges 83,949                         67,646                         

TOTAL 1,21,73,88,324          1,47,79,26,442          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

3.21   OTHER EXPENSES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Advertisement 2,36,881                      12,25,187                    
To Auditors
     Statutory Audit 2,18,000                      2,18,000                      
     Internal Audit 4,82,325                      4,09,755                      
BOT Expenses 5,42,45,964                 5,32,84,976                 
Annuity-KSRTC -                              5,93,510                      
General Expenses 4,49,691                      5,64,428                      
Interest & Penal Charges 6,30,338                      38,470                         
Legal and Professional Charges 12,36,992                    14,60,552                    
Postage & Courier 1,45,932                      2,18,281                      
Printing and Stationery 1,78,875                      2,64,694                      
Term Loan- PROCESSING FEE -                              1,92,750                      
Rates & Taxes 57,174                         52,541                         
Rent  4,02,480                      5,00,854                      
Repairs & Maintenance (Others) 7,55,985                      6,72,332                      
Repairs & Maintenance (Vehicle) 4,67,653                      5,56,905                      
Security Charges 4,54,083                      4,34,066                      
Telephone & Internet Expenses 1,94,659                      2,88,133                      
Travel Expenses 1,19,832                      88,239                         
Water and Electricity Charges 12,13,838                    17,92,688                    
Prior period Expenses (Refer Note No.3.26(b) 2,95,59,811                 -                              

TOTAL 9,10,50,514               6,28,56,362               

3.22  PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets(NPA) 20,04,075                    2,99,78,61,586             
Provision for Doubtful tenents 1,39,691                      62,723                         
Provision For doubtful projects -                              -                              
Loans / Bad debts Written Off 17,77,567                    1,59,21,617                 

TOTAL 39,21,333                  3,01,38,45,926          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

Provision made for Doubtful Loan Assets during the year of Rs.20,04,075/- represents the balance outstanding in loan 
accounts transferred to Revenue Recovery AS ON 31.03.2020 & provision for Non-Performing Assets.
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3.18  OTHER INCOME
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Income from Leasing 12,10,92,544                9,67,67,836                 
Centage Charges Received -                              -                              
Dividend Received 13,50,000                    12,50,000                    
Interest Received 35,91,29,034                2,52,90,623                 
Profit on sale of Batteries -                              -                              
Prior Period Income (Refer Note No.3.26(b) 4,74,12,014                 
Miscellaneous Receipts 50,768                         60,087                         

TOTAL 48,16,22,346             17,07,80,559             

3.19   EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Salaries and Allowances 1,68,24,451                 1,98,11,212                 
Stipend to Trainees 6,41,945                      6,57,744                      
Employer Contribution to EPF 16,19,482                    12,82,670                    
Employer Contribution to ESI 3,09,100                      1,86,963                      
Pension Contribution 51,480                         12,55,969                    
Leave Surrender 11,66,878                    11,77,149                    
Gratuity 6,22,996                      4,42,398                      
Others 163                             -                              
Staff Welfare 1,34,269                      1,60,110                      

TOTAL 2,13,70,764               2,49,74,215               

3.20   FINANCE COSTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Interest Expenses :
Interest paid on Fixed Deposits 79,83,13,623                1,05,53,77,091             

Other Borrowing Cost :
Commission & Brokerage 1,03,71,798                 1,39,43,111                 
Gurantee Fee paid to GOK 7,61,12,808                 10,81,81,954                
Interest Expenses On Loan  DCB 33,24,99,998                30,03,56,640                
Interest on Investors Education Protection Fund 6,147                          
Bank Charges 83,949                         67,646                         

TOTAL 1,21,73,88,324          1,47,79,26,442          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

3.21   OTHER EXPENSES
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Advertisement 2,36,881                      12,25,187                    
To Auditors
     Statutory Audit 2,18,000                      2,18,000                      
     Internal Audit 4,82,325                      4,09,755                      
BOT Expenses 5,42,45,964                 5,32,84,976                 
Annuity-KSRTC -                              5,93,510                      
General Expenses 4,49,691                      5,64,428                      
Interest & Penal Charges 6,30,338                      38,470                         
Legal and Professional Charges 12,36,992                    14,60,552                    
Postage & Courier 1,45,932                      2,18,281                      
Printing and Stationery 1,78,875                      2,64,694                      
Term Loan- PROCESSING FEE -                              1,92,750                      
Rates & Taxes 57,174                         52,541                         
Rent  4,02,480                      5,00,854                      
Repairs & Maintenance (Others) 7,55,985                      6,72,332                      
Repairs & Maintenance (Vehicle) 4,67,653                      5,56,905                      
Security Charges 4,54,083                      4,34,066                      
Telephone & Internet Expenses 1,94,659                      2,88,133                      
Travel Expenses 1,19,832                      88,239                         
Water and Electricity Charges 12,13,838                    17,92,688                    
Prior period Expenses (Refer Note No.3.26(b) 2,95,59,811                 -                              

TOTAL 9,10,50,514               6,28,56,362               

3.22  PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Provision for Doubtful Loan Assets(NPA) 20,04,075                    2,99,78,61,586             
Provision for Doubtful tenents 1,39,691                      62,723                         
Provision For doubtful projects -                              -                              
Loans / Bad debts Written Off 17,77,567                    1,59,21,617                 

TOTAL 39,21,333                  3,01,38,45,926          

PARTICULARS

PARTICULARS

Provision made for Doubtful Loan Assets during the year of Rs.20,04,075/- represents the balance outstanding in loan 
accounts transferred to Revenue Recovery AS ON 31.03.2020 & provision for Non-Performing Assets.

Provision for NPA as follows:-
Provision for Sub-Standard Assets Rs.5,90,070/-
Provision for Doubtful Assets Rs.0/-
Provision for Loss Assets Rs.14,14,005/-
Provision for Standered Asset Rs.0/-

3.23  (EXCESS) OR SHORT PROVISION RELATING TO PRIOR YEARS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Excess provision for tax relating to AY 2012-13 (Refer Note No.4.8) -                              (1,82,46,103)                
Income tax Refund AY2011-12 (Refer Note No.4.8) -                              (20,56,933)                   
Income Tax Demand AY 2010-11 (Refer Note No.4.8) -                              (9,61,347)                     
Income Tax Demand AY 2011-12 (Refer Note No.4.8) -                              (5,07,59,560)                

TOTAL -                             (7,20,23,943)              

3.24   EARNINGS PER SHARE
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Net profit / (loss) for the year from continuing operations (76,22,34,769)               (3,26,11,38,905)            
Net profit/ (loss) available to equity share holders (79,35,11,734)               (2,41,30,52,277)            
Weighted average number of equity shares 4,38,300                      4,38,300                      
Earnings per share from continuing operations (1,810)                         (5,505)                         
Par value per share 1,000                          1,000                          

3.25  MSME DISCLOSURE

3.26 (a)  PAYMENT TO AUDITORS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

(a) As auditors - Statutory audit (including taxes) 2,18,000                      2,18,000                      
(b) As auditors - Internal Audit 4,82,325                      4,09,755                      
(c) For company law matters -                              -                              
(d) For other services

TOTAL 7,00,325                    6,27,755                    

3.26 (b)   PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS
As at As at 

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.Amount in Rs.

Prior period Expenses 3,75,39,218                 21,93,593                    
Prior Period Income (80,00,157)                   (5,33,86,111)                
Interest accrued on Term Deposits understated -                              
Interest accrued on Term Deposits overstated 2,95,396                      
Provision for CSR 18,000                         38,77,484                    
FD Payable 4                                
Forfeiture of EMD/Security Deposit 2,750                          (3,92,380)                     

TOTAL 2,95,59,811               (4,74,12,014)              

Particulars

PARTICULARS

Particulars

Particulars

The Company has not received any information from its supplier regarding their status under the Micro,   Small   and Medium 

Enterprise Development Act, 2006, and hence disclosure, if any, relating to amounts unpaid as on 31st March,2019 together 

with interest paid/payable as required under the Act, have not been given.
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OTHER NOTES 

4.1 Fixed Deposits 

�i�ed deposit �rom public collected under �arious schemes li�e ���� ����� �alute etc� totallin� to 
Rs����1��1�0���0��� disclosed under Lon� Term �orrowin�s (Deposit �rom public – Rs� �����20�2���2���  as per 
�ote �o� ���� and Other Current Liabilities (current maturities o� lon� term borrowin�s Rs� ������0����0�0��  as 
per �ote �o� ���� are not reconciled and tallied with the �ubsidiar� re�isters and records as on the closin� date� 
 
These �i�ed Deposits include a �uspense amount o� Rs� ����������� out o� which Rs����1����1�� is outstandin� 
�rom �1�0��201�� These Deposits also include an amount o� Rs� ���12���0�� classi�ied as ‘Term Deposit Auto 
Renewal’ (since 2010�11� which thou�h matured are neither renewed nor closed as on the closin� date� 
 
�urther� interest accrued but not due amountin� to Rs� �0�����0��0���  disclosed under ‘Other Current Liabilities’ 
(�ote ���� is not reconciled and tallied with the �ubsidiar� re�isters and records as on the closin� date o� which 
an amountin� to Rs�2���������1�� relatin� to the interest accrued o� DC� Loan �or the month o�  �arch 2020�The 
�on�Current portion o� this liabilit� is not bi�urcated and disclosed separatel� under ‘Other Lon��Term 
Liabilities’ due to the comple�it� in�ol�ed in carr�in� out such bi�urcation�   
 

4.2    Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
i� The balance in �uspense Account amountin� to Rs� ��������0�� comprises o� unidenti�ied transactions 

appearin� in ban� accounts� unreconciled salar� deductions and contribution to �C���� ��� and 
miscellaneous items� the ad�ustments o� which are pendin� in the boo�s o� accounts �or want o� su��icient and 
conclusi�e e�idence as to the nature o� such transactions�  

 
ii� Other Lon� Term Liabilit� o� Rs� ���2�����1��� as per �ote �o���� includes Rs� ��1������� which represents 

e�cess ta� deducted and remitted b� �arious parties �rom ta�able pa�ments made to the Corporation� in 
respect o� which credit has been a�ailed in the �ncome Ta� Return �or the pre�ious �ears �or which 
ad�ustments are still pendin��  

 

4.3 Long-Term Provisions 

i� The Corporation pro�ides the encashment o� earned lea�e to all emplo�ees wor�in� in the or�anisation� The 
�ermanent and Deputation emplo�ees are eli�ible �or carr� �orward option �or a ma�imum o� �00 da�s o� 
lea�e till Retirement� �owe�er� in case o� Deputation emplo�ees� the amount due will be paid b� the concerned 
parent Department at the time o� retirement and as such no pro�ision �or lea�e encashment in respect o� these 
emplo�ees is created� The Contract emplo�ees are allowed to a�ail the encashment o� earned lea�e �or a 
ma�imum o� 1� da�s with a restriction on a�ailin� the same within the �inancial �ear itsel��  Actuarial �aluation 
was not carried out in determinin� the amount o� pro�ision towards earned lea�e encashment� 
 

ii� The compan� ma�es a pro�ision �or Doubt�ul Loan Asset to the e�tent o� 100� o� balance outstandin� in 
respect o� loans under Re�enue Reco�er�� Accordin�l�� pro�ision was created �or the balance o� Loan under 
Re�enue Reco�er� a�ailable as on �1�0��201� was reduced amountin� to Rs���2���������� due to e�cess 
pro�isions made durin� the pre�ious �ears and a pro�ision o� Rs� 1�����0���� was created durin� the �ear 
a�ainst non�per�ormin� assets as per R�� prudential norms w�e��� �1�0��201�� The total pro�ision �or Doubt�ul 
Loan asset comes to Rs� ���������������� which is disclosed under Lon� Term �ro�isions (�ote ����� 

 
 

4.4   Other Current Liabilities 
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OTHER NOTES 

4.1 Fixed Deposits 

�i�ed deposit �rom public collected under �arious schemes li�e ���� ����� �alute etc� totallin� to 
Rs����1��1�0���0��� disclosed under Lon� Term �orrowin�s (Deposit �rom public – Rs� �����20�2���2���  as per 
�ote �o� ���� and Other Current Liabilities (current maturities o� lon� term borrowin�s Rs� ������0����0�0��  as 
per �ote �o� ���� are not reconciled and tallied with the �ubsidiar� re�isters and records as on the closin� date� 
 
These �i�ed Deposits include a �uspense amount o� Rs� ����������� out o� which Rs����1����1�� is outstandin� 
�rom �1�0��201�� These Deposits also include an amount o� Rs� ���12���0�� classi�ied as ‘Term Deposit Auto 
Renewal’ (since 2010�11� which thou�h matured are neither renewed nor closed as on the closin� date� 
 
�urther� interest accrued but not due amountin� to Rs� �0�����0��0���  disclosed under ‘Other Current Liabilities’ 
(�ote ���� is not reconciled and tallied with the �ubsidiar� re�isters and records as on the closin� date o� which 
an amountin� to Rs�2���������1�� relatin� to the interest accrued o� DC� Loan �or the month o�  �arch 2020�The 
�on�Current portion o� this liabilit� is not bi�urcated and disclosed separatel� under ‘Other Lon��Term 
Liabilities’ due to the comple�it� in�ol�ed in carr�in� out such bi�urcation�   
 

4.2    Other Long Term Liabilities 

 
i� The balance in �uspense Account amountin� to Rs� ��������0�� comprises o� unidenti�ied transactions 

appearin� in ban� accounts� unreconciled salar� deductions and contribution to �C���� ��� and 
miscellaneous items� the ad�ustments o� which are pendin� in the boo�s o� accounts �or want o� su��icient and 
conclusi�e e�idence as to the nature o� such transactions�  

 
ii� Other Lon� Term Liabilit� o� Rs� ���2�����1��� as per �ote �o���� includes Rs� ��1������� which represents 

e�cess ta� deducted and remitted b� �arious parties �rom ta�able pa�ments made to the Corporation� in 
respect o� which credit has been a�ailed in the �ncome Ta� Return �or the pre�ious �ears �or which 
ad�ustments are still pendin��  

 

4.3 Long-Term Provisions 

i� The Corporation pro�ides the encashment o� earned lea�e to all emplo�ees wor�in� in the or�anisation� The 
�ermanent and Deputation emplo�ees are eli�ible �or carr� �orward option �or a ma�imum o� �00 da�s o� 
lea�e till Retirement� �owe�er� in case o� Deputation emplo�ees� the amount due will be paid b� the concerned 
parent Department at the time o� retirement and as such no pro�ision �or lea�e encashment in respect o� these 
emplo�ees is created� The Contract emplo�ees are allowed to a�ail the encashment o� earned lea�e �or a 
ma�imum o� 1� da�s with a restriction on a�ailin� the same within the �inancial �ear itsel��  Actuarial �aluation 
was not carried out in determinin� the amount o� pro�ision towards earned lea�e encashment� 
 

ii� The compan� ma�es a pro�ision �or Doubt�ul Loan Asset to the e�tent o� 100� o� balance outstandin� in 
respect o� loans under Re�enue Reco�er�� Accordin�l�� pro�ision was created �or the balance o� Loan under 
Re�enue Reco�er� a�ailable as on �1�0��201� was reduced amountin� to Rs���2���������� due to e�cess 
pro�isions made durin� the pre�ious �ears and a pro�ision o� Rs� 1�����0���� was created durin� the �ear 
a�ainst non�per�ormin� assets as per R�� prudential norms w�e��� �1�0��201�� The total pro�ision �or Doubt�ul 
Loan asset comes to Rs� ���������������� which is disclosed under Lon� Term �ro�isions (�ote ����� 

 
 

4.4   Other Current Liabilities 

i. There were TDS de�ands fro� inco�e ta� depart�ent a�ounting to �s.�7������5 and �s4��54���� in respect 
of pay�ent of interest on fi�ed deposits relating to ��14�15 and ��15�1� respecti�ely� which was paid by the 
co�pany fro� own resources. These a�ounts were boo�ed under the heads ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ and ‘Tds 
(Interest on �D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’. The co�pany started reco�ering the TDS so paid fro� the 
subse�uent interest payable to the deposit holders. �ow� the account  ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ shows e�cess 
reco�ery� the balance of which as on the closing date a�ounts to �s. 1�75���5��. This a�ount is disclosed as 
part of other current liabilities (�ote �o �.7) under the head ‘statutory liabilities’. And the ‘Tds (Interest on 
�D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’ showing debit balance is disclosed as part of ‘other current asset’ (�ote 
�o.�.1�). 
 

ii. �ther �iabilities of �s. 71�17��11�� under the head �ther �urrent �iabilities (�ote �o.�.7) includes an a�ount 
of  �s. 4�14������� being credit balance in so�e of the loans gi�en by the co�pany� which are sub�ect to suitable 
ad�ust�ents in the boo�s of accounts. 

4.5 Non-Current Investment 

The co�pany has in�est�ent in e�uity shares of State �an� of India (erstwhile State �an� of Tra�ancore) and 
�ochin International Airport �i�ited out of which Shares of S�I are �uoted securities� regularly traded in stoc� 
e�changes. The co�pany originally had 17�5� e�uity shares of the face �alue of �s.1� each of State �an� of 
Tra�ancore� which was later con�erted into ����� e�uity shares of �e. 1 each of State �an� of India due to 
corporate �erger between the two ban�s. The �ar�et �alue of �uoted shares of S�I co�es to �s.���.55 per 
share as at the close of the year(�9th �arch ��19). In respect of shares of �ochin International Airport �i�ited� 
there is no per�anent di�inution in its �alue and as such no ad�ust�ent in �alue has been �ade in the boo�s 
in respect thereof. 

4.6 Long- Term Loans and Advances 

i. The co�pany rescheduled �arious loans together with interest thereon� outstanding fro� �S�T� on 
�1.1�.��15 as a new loan of �s.5��1�4���4�5����with a repay�ent period of 5 years at the rate of 1�.��� 
interest to be repaid in e�uated daily instal�ents  (�DI) of �s.����1�4���� with effect fro� �anuary 1���1�� on 
the basis of a report fro� special auditor �S �a�an � �o.At the ti�e of reschedule�ent� the total of loans 
outstanding fro� �S�T� as per the boo�s �aintained by the co�pany was �s. 5����5��97�77���.  The 
difference of �s.������75��� is incorporated in the boo�s during the current year.  And �S�T� is in the process 
of reconciliation of the difference with their boo�s and records. 
 
�n �9th �arch ��1�� through a �onsortiu� for�ed by S�I� �i�aya �an�� �anara �an� and �TD��� �S�T� was 
sanctioned Ter� �oan for an a�ount not e�ceeding �s.�1�� crores. �TD�� �oined the consortiu� on the 
condition that the total a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� will be ta�en o�er by the consortiu� to the e�tent of 
�S.11�� �rores and the balance a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� shall be settled by go�ern�ent of �erala. 
Accordingly� the share of �TD�� in the �onsortiu� arrange�ent is �s.11�� crores at a lending rate of 9.��. 
The balance a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� as on the date of consortiu� was �s.1���.5� crores and out 
which �s.11�� crores was transferred to consortiu� loan arrange�ent and balance of �s.1��.5� crores being 
the a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� is shown as �S�T� �ong Ter� loan. 
 

ii. �o�ern�ent has not yet finalised the rate of interest to be earned on �T� co�ple�es. 
 

iii. The �oans gi�en by the �o�pany on which �e�enue �eco�ery proceedings ha�e been initiated are classified as 
Doubtful �oans under �ong Ter� �oans and Ad�ances. The co�pany does not ha�e a specific policy for 
initiating �eco�ery �roceedings against the �oanee under default. �hen reco�eries are �ade� the a�ounts are 
first ad�usted against penal and o�erdue interest till the date of reco�ery� and the balance is ad�usted against 
the interest and the principle a�ount. 
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i. There were TDS de�ands fro� inco�e ta� depart�ent a�ounting to �s.�7������5 and �s4��54���� in respect 
of pay�ent of interest on fi�ed deposits relating to ��14�15 and ��15�1� respecti�ely� which was paid by the 
co�pany fro� own resources. These a�ounts were boo�ed under the heads ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ and ‘Tds 
(Interest on �D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’. The co�pany started reco�ering the TDS so paid fro� the 
subse�uent interest payable to the deposit holders. �ow� the account  ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ shows e�cess 
reco�ery� the balance of which as on the closing date a�ounts to �s. 1�75���5��. This a�ount is disclosed as 
part of other current liabilities (�ote �o �.7) under the head ‘statutory liabilities’. And the ‘Tds (Interest on 
�D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’ showing debit balance is disclosed as part of ‘other current asset’ (�ote 
�o.�.1�). 
 

ii. �ther �iabilities of �s. 71�17��11�� under the head �ther �urrent �iabilities (�ote �o.�.7) includes an a�ount 
of  �s. 4�14������� being credit balance in so�e of the loans gi�en by the co�pany� which are sub�ect to suitable 
ad�ust�ents in the boo�s of accounts. 

4.5 Non-Current Investment 

The co�pany has in�est�ent in e�uity shares of State �an� of India (erstwhile State �an� of Tra�ancore) and 
�ochin International Airport �i�ited out of which Shares of S�I are �uoted securities� regularly traded in stoc� 
e�changes. The co�pany originally had 17�5� e�uity shares of the face �alue of �s.1� each of State �an� of 
Tra�ancore� which was later con�erted into ����� e�uity shares of �e. 1 each of State �an� of India due to 
corporate �erger between the two ban�s. The �ar�et �alue of �uoted shares of S�I co�es to �s.���.55 per 
share as at the close of the year(�9th �arch ��19). In respect of shares of �ochin International Airport �i�ited� 
there is no per�anent di�inution in its �alue and as such no ad�ust�ent in �alue has been �ade in the boo�s 
in respect thereof. 

4.6 Long- Term Loans and Advances 

i. The co�pany rescheduled �arious loans together with interest thereon� outstanding fro� �S�T� on 
�1.1�.��15 as a new loan of �s.5��1�4���4�5����with a repay�ent period of 5 years at the rate of 1�.��� 
interest to be repaid in e�uated daily instal�ents  (�DI) of �s.����1�4���� with effect fro� �anuary 1���1�� on 
the basis of a report fro� special auditor �S �a�an � �o.At the ti�e of reschedule�ent� the total of loans 
outstanding fro� �S�T� as per the boo�s �aintained by the co�pany was �s. 5����5��97�77���.  The 
difference of �s.������75��� is incorporated in the boo�s during the current year.  And �S�T� is in the process 
of reconciliation of the difference with their boo�s and records. 
 
�n �9th �arch ��1�� through a �onsortiu� for�ed by S�I� �i�aya �an�� �anara �an� and �TD��� �S�T� was 
sanctioned Ter� �oan for an a�ount not e�ceeding �s.�1�� crores. �TD�� �oined the consortiu� on the 
condition that the total a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� will be ta�en o�er by the consortiu� to the e�tent of 
�S.11�� �rores and the balance a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� shall be settled by go�ern�ent of �erala. 
Accordingly� the share of �TD�� in the �onsortiu� arrange�ent is �s.11�� crores at a lending rate of 9.��. 
The balance a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� as on the date of consortiu� was �s.1���.5� crores and out 
which �s.11�� crores was transferred to consortiu� loan arrange�ent and balance of �s.1��.5� crores being 
the a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� is shown as �S�T� �ong Ter� loan. 
 

ii. �o�ern�ent has not yet finalised the rate of interest to be earned on �T� co�ple�es. 
 

iii. The �oans gi�en by the �o�pany on which �e�enue �eco�ery proceedings ha�e been initiated are classified as 
Doubtful �oans under �ong Ter� �oans and Ad�ances. The co�pany does not ha�e a specific policy for 
initiating �eco�ery �roceedings against the �oanee under default. �hen reco�eries are �ade� the a�ounts are 
first ad�usted against penal and o�erdue interest till the date of reco�ery� and the balance is ad�usted against 
the interest and the principle a�ount. 

 
 
 

 

4.7 Other Non-Current Assets 
 

 
i. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. �4�����7���� towards Inco�e Ta� �efund 

clai�ed for the Assess�ent �ear ��15�1�. Since the status of this is not clear� no ad�ust�ent is �ade in the 
boo�s in respect thereof. 

 
ii. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 5�75�9��74���� towards Inco�e Ta� 

�efund clai�ed for the Assess�ent �ear ��17�1�. Since the status of this is not clear� no ad�ust�ent is �ade in 
the boo�s in respect thereof. 

 
iii. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 5�9��4���7���� towards Inco�e ta� 

De�and for the Assess�ent year ��1��17. 
 

i�. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 4������5�� � �s. ���5���1�� towards 
e�isting Ser�ice Ta� De�and for the �� ��1��1� � ��14�15 respecti�ely was de�anded in addition to �s. 
1���7�15��� � 1���5�7���� respecti�ely during the pre�ious year.  

 
�. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 11����75��� towards Ser�ice Ta� De�and 

for the financial year ��1��17. 
 

�i. �ther �on��urrent Assets� includes �s.��14�7��9�4��being Interest recei�able on Trans Tower cost fro� 
�o�ern�ent of �erala which is outstanding for the past few years and is  considered as doubtful  for which no 
pro�ision has been �ade for the year ��19���. 
 
 
 

4.8   Income Tax Demand 

i. �urther� �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o.�.1�) include an a�ount of �s.15����4��44� which is the 
inco�e ta� and ser�ice ta� paid by the co�pany on the basis of de�and notices recei�ed fro� the 
concerned Depart�ents� at appeals are pending at �arious foru�s� the details of which are as follows� 

�eriod to which 
dispute relates to 

�ature of ta� De�and A�ount paid Date of �ay�ent 

���9�1� Inco�e Ta� 14��1��5� �4������14 
���9�1� Inco�e Ta� �5��5�7�� ����5���17 
���9�1� Inco�e Ta� 1������� 1�������1� 
��1��11 Inco�e Ta� �������� ��������1� 
��11�1� Inco�e Ta� ���9�99� �7�1����14 
��11�1� Inco�e Ta� � 5�����9�4�� ��������14 
��1��1� Inco�e Ta� 7�����4�� 1��1����15 
��1��1� Inco�e Ta� 1�5����� 1��1����15 
��14�15 Inco�e Ta� 1��1����749 �7������17 
��15�1� Inco�e Ta� �9����95� ����1���1� 

�1��7���1�  
to �1������14 Ser�ice Ta� 1���7�15� �9������17 

��14�15 Ser�ice Ta� 1���5�7�� �9������17 
��1��17 Inco�e Ta� 5�9��4���7� �1������19 
��1��1� Ser�ice Ta� 4������5 ���11���1� 
��14�15 Ser�ice Ta� ���5���1 ���11���1� 
��1��17 Ser�ice Ta� 11����75� 11�1����1� 

�includes refund recei�ed of �s.���5��9��� (�ote 4.�(iii) below) 
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i. There were TDS de�ands fro� inco�e ta� depart�ent a�ounting to �s.�7������5 and �s4��54���� in respect 
of pay�ent of interest on fi�ed deposits relating to ��14�15 and ��15�1� respecti�ely� which was paid by the 
co�pany fro� own resources. These a�ounts were boo�ed under the heads ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ and ‘Tds 
(Interest on �D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’. The co�pany started reco�ering the TDS so paid fro� the 
subse�uent interest payable to the deposit holders. �ow� the account  ‘Arrear TDS 194 A’ shows e�cess 
reco�ery� the balance of which as on the closing date a�ounts to �s. 1�75���5��. This a�ount is disclosed as 
part of other current liabilities (�ote �o �.7) under the head ‘statutory liabilities’. And the ‘Tds (Interest on 
�D) for �arlier �ears ��14�15’ showing debit balance is disclosed as part of ‘other current asset’ (�ote 
�o.�.1�). 
 

ii. �ther �iabilities of �s. 71�17��11�� under the head �ther �urrent �iabilities (�ote �o.�.7) includes an a�ount 
of  �s. 4�14������� being credit balance in so�e of the loans gi�en by the co�pany� which are sub�ect to suitable 
ad�ust�ents in the boo�s of accounts. 

4.5 Non-Current Investment 

The co�pany has in�est�ent in e�uity shares of State �an� of India (erstwhile State �an� of Tra�ancore) and 
�ochin International Airport �i�ited out of which Shares of S�I are �uoted securities� regularly traded in stoc� 
e�changes. The co�pany originally had 17�5� e�uity shares of the face �alue of �s.1� each of State �an� of 
Tra�ancore� which was later con�erted into ����� e�uity shares of �e. 1 each of State �an� of India due to 
corporate �erger between the two ban�s. The �ar�et �alue of �uoted shares of S�I co�es to �s.���.55 per 
share as at the close of the year(�9th �arch ��19). In respect of shares of �ochin International Airport �i�ited� 
there is no per�anent di�inution in its �alue and as such no ad�ust�ent in �alue has been �ade in the boo�s 
in respect thereof. 

4.6 Long- Term Loans and Advances 

i. The co�pany rescheduled �arious loans together with interest thereon� outstanding fro� �S�T� on 
�1.1�.��15 as a new loan of �s.5��1�4���4�5����with a repay�ent period of 5 years at the rate of 1�.��� 
interest to be repaid in e�uated daily instal�ents  (�DI) of �s.����1�4���� with effect fro� �anuary 1���1�� on 
the basis of a report fro� special auditor �S �a�an � �o.At the ti�e of reschedule�ent� the total of loans 
outstanding fro� �S�T� as per the boo�s �aintained by the co�pany was �s. 5����5��97�77���.  The 
difference of �s.������75��� is incorporated in the boo�s during the current year.  And �S�T� is in the process 
of reconciliation of the difference with their boo�s and records. 
 
�n �9th �arch ��1�� through a �onsortiu� for�ed by S�I� �i�aya �an�� �anara �an� and �TD��� �S�T� was 
sanctioned Ter� �oan for an a�ount not e�ceeding �s.�1�� crores. �TD�� �oined the consortiu� on the 
condition that the total a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� will be ta�en o�er by the consortiu� to the e�tent of 
�S.11�� �rores and the balance a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� shall be settled by go�ern�ent of �erala. 
Accordingly� the share of �TD�� in the �onsortiu� arrange�ent is �s.11�� crores at a lending rate of 9.��. 
The balance a�ount outstanding fro� �S�T� as on the date of consortiu� was �s.1���.5� crores and out 
which �s.11�� crores was transferred to consortiu� loan arrange�ent and balance of �s.1��.5� crores being 
the a�ount recei�able fro� �S�T� is shown as �S�T� �ong Ter� loan. 
 

ii. �o�ern�ent has not yet finalised the rate of interest to be earned on �T� co�ple�es. 
 

iii. The �oans gi�en by the �o�pany on which �e�enue �eco�ery proceedings ha�e been initiated are classified as 
Doubtful �oans under �ong Ter� �oans and Ad�ances. The co�pany does not ha�e a specific policy for 
initiating �eco�ery �roceedings against the �oanee under default. �hen reco�eries are �ade� the a�ounts are 
first ad�usted against penal and o�erdue interest till the date of reco�ery� and the balance is ad�usted against 
the interest and the principle a�ount. 

 
 
 

 

4.7 Other Non-Current Assets 
 

 
i. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. �4�����7���� towards Inco�e Ta� �efund 

clai�ed for the Assess�ent �ear ��15�1�. Since the status of this is not clear� no ad�ust�ent is �ade in the 
boo�s in respect thereof. 

 
ii. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 5�75�9��74���� towards Inco�e Ta� 

�efund clai�ed for the Assess�ent �ear ��17�1�. Since the status of this is not clear� no ad�ust�ent is �ade in 
the boo�s in respect thereof. 

 
iii. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 5�9��4���7���� towards Inco�e ta� 

De�and for the Assess�ent year ��1��17. 
 

i�. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 4������5�� � �s. ���5���1�� towards 
e�isting Ser�ice Ta� De�and for the �� ��1��1� � ��14�15 respecti�ely was de�anded in addition to �s. 
1���7�15��� � 1���5�7���� respecti�ely during the pre�ious year.  

 
�. �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o. �.1�) includes an a�ount of �s. 11����75��� towards Ser�ice Ta� De�and 

for the financial year ��1��17. 
 

�i. �ther �on��urrent Assets� includes �s.��14�7��9�4��being Interest recei�able on Trans Tower cost fro� 
�o�ern�ent of �erala which is outstanding for the past few years and is  considered as doubtful  for which no 
pro�ision has been �ade for the year ��19���. 
 
 
 

4.8   Income Tax Demand 

i. �urther� �ther �on��urrent Assets (�ote �o.�.1�) include an a�ount of �s.15����4��44� which is the 
inco�e ta� and ser�ice ta� paid by the co�pany on the basis of de�and notices recei�ed fro� the 
concerned Depart�ents� at appeals are pending at �arious foru�s� the details of which are as follows� 

�eriod to which 
dispute relates to 

�ature of ta� De�and A�ount paid Date of �ay�ent 

���9�1� Inco�e Ta� 14��1��5� �4������14 
���9�1� Inco�e Ta� �5��5�7�� ����5���17 
���9�1� Inco�e Ta� 1������� 1�������1� 
��1��11 Inco�e Ta� �������� ��������1� 
��11�1� Inco�e Ta� ���9�99� �7�1����14 
��11�1� Inco�e Ta� � 5�����9�4�� ��������14 
��1��1� Inco�e Ta� 7�����4�� 1��1����15 
��1��1� Inco�e Ta� 1�5����� 1��1����15 
��14�15 Inco�e Ta� 1��1����749 �7������17 
��15�1� Inco�e Ta� �9����95� ����1���1� 

�1��7���1�  
to �1������14 Ser�ice Ta� 1���7�15� �9������17 

��14�15 Ser�ice Ta� 1���5�7�� �9������17 
��1��17 Inco�e Ta� 5�9��4���7� �1������19 
��1��1� Ser�ice Ta� 4������5 ���11���1� 
��14�15 Ser�ice Ta� ���5���1 ���11���1� 
��1��17 Ser�ice Ta� 11����75� 11�1����1� 

�includes refund recei�ed of �s.���5��9��� (�ote 4.�(iii) below) 
 

ii. For the Assessment year 2010�11, the income tax department raised a demand of Rs.12,��,�3� against 
which Rs.3,��,3�0 was paid on 22�02�2013 and the balance of Rs�,��,��� was ad�usted by the Income Tax 
Department against the refund issued for the Assessment �ear 2011�12 �As per note �.��iii� below�in 
respect of which the company preferred an appeal. However, instead of retaining in the books as ‘Current 
Asset’ in the light of the appeal, the amount so paid was deducted from the surplus in the Profit and Loss 
account under the head ‘Reserves & Surplus’ in the year 2012�13, against the stated accounting policy. 
Conse�uently, this amount was also not disclosed as Contingent Liability in the Accounts for the 
subse�uent years. This is rectified by debiting the Profit and Loss account and reinstating the Tax Demand 
already paid as ‘Other Non�Current Asset’ in the books of accounts.  
 

iii. For the Assessment �ear 2011�12, the company filed return of income based on provisional financial 
statements claiming a refund of Rs.2�,�0,��0.  The Income Tax Department issued refund of this amount 
and after setting off Rs.�,��,��� against the pending demand for the Assessment �ear 2010�11, paid 
Rs.20,��,�33on 0��0��2013 which was accounted as ‘Income Tax Refund’ under ‘Current Liabilities’ for 
the year 2013�1�. Later, when the revised return was filed for the Assessment �ear 2011�12 with audited 
financial statements, the Income Tax Department raised a demand of Rs.�,�3,�2,�30 on 2��03�201� which 
included the amount of Rs.2�,2�,�00 already refunded. The company paid an amount of Rs. �,33,��,��0 as 
Self Assessment Tax on 2�.03.201� which is ad�usted against this demand for which appeal is pending 
before the Income Tax Department. However, instead of retaining in the books as ‘Current Asset’ in the 
light of the appeal, the amount so paid was deducted from the surplus in the Profit and Loss account under 
the head ‘Reserves & Surplus’ in the year 2013�1�, against the stated accounting policy. Conse�uently, this 
amount was also not disclosed as Contingent Liability in the Accounts for the subse�uent years. This is 
now rectified by debiting the Profit and Loss account and reinstating the Tax Demand already paid as 
‘Other Non�Current Asset’ in the books of accounts. 
 
 

iv. The company has not filed the income tax return for the Assessment �ear 200��0� and as such tax amount 
was not assessed and tax liability was not remitted for that year. 

4.9 Other Current Assets 

Other Current Asset of Rs. 1,00,�3,2���� includes ‘Rent Receivable From KSUDP’ amounting to Rs. 
1,3�,��1�� which is  considered as doubtful  and provision is made during the year 201��20. 

4.10 Others 

KTDFC has been exempted from R�I Prudential norms up to 31�03�201�. From the financial year 201��1� 
KTDFC has followed the Non�Performing Asset �NPA� Procedure of provisioning for NPA. The interest 
accrued on NPA Loans i.e, principal�interest pending for more than �0 days on loans advanced has been 
reversed & maintained as a memorandum account “Interest suspense” & “Interest accrued” for respective 
loans amounting to Rs.1,01,�0,3�,�1�.�0�� will not reflect in the books of accounts. 

4.11 Foreign Currency Transactions 

The Corporation had no imports during the year and there were no income or expenses in foreign currency. 

4.12 Contingent Liabilities 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt, the outcome of which is contingent are as follows� 
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amount was also not disclosed as Contingent Liability in the Accounts for the subse�uent years. This is 
now rectified by debiting the Profit and Loss account and reinstating the Tax Demand already paid as 
‘Other Non�Current Asset’ in the books of accounts. 
 
 

iv. The company has not filed the income tax return for the Assessment �ear 200��0� and as such tax amount 
was not assessed and tax liability was not remitted for that year. 

4.9 Other Current Assets 

Other Current Asset of Rs. 1,00,�3,2���� includes ‘Rent Receivable From KSUDP’ amounting to Rs. 
1,3�,��1�� which is  considered as doubtful  and provision is made during the year 201��20. 

4.10 Others 

KTDFC has been exempted from R�I Prudential norms up to 31�03�201�. From the financial year 201��1� 
KTDFC has followed the Non�Performing Asset �NPA� Procedure of provisioning for NPA. The interest 
accrued on NPA Loans i.e, principal�interest pending for more than �0 days on loans advanced has been 
reversed & maintained as a memorandum account “Interest suspense” & “Interest accrued” for respective 
loans amounting to Rs.1,01,�0,3�,�1�.�0�� will not reflect in the books of accounts. 

4.11 Foreign Currency Transactions 

The Corporation had no imports during the year and there were no income or expenses in foreign currency. 

4.12 Contingent Liabilities 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt, the outcome of which is contingent are as follows� 

 

 

4.13 Segment Reporting 

i. Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standards AS�1�, Segment Reporting, taking into 
account the organi�ational Structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments. The 
operations of the corporations predominantly relate to N�FC operations� the other business segment is �OT 
operations. The activities of the corporation are restricted to the State of Kerala and therefore no 
geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary. 
 
The details of �usiness Segment information is presented below� 
 

Particulars For the year ended 
31st March 2020 

(In Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
31st March 2019 

(In Lakhs) 
A.   SEGMENT REVENUE:   
�a� N�FC Operation �3��.33 1233�.�� 
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amount was also not disclosed as Contingent Liability in the Accounts for the subse�uent years. This is 
now rectified by debiting the Profit and Loss account and reinstating the Tax Demand already paid as 
‘Other Non�Current Asset’ in the books of accounts. 
 
 

iv. The company has not filed the income tax return for the Assessment �ear 200��0� and as such tax amount 
was not assessed and tax liability was not remitted for that year. 

4.9 Other Current Assets 

Other Current Asset of Rs. 1,00,�3,2���� includes ‘Rent Receivable From KSUDP’ amounting to Rs. 
1,3�,��1�� which is  considered as doubtful  and provision is made during the year 201��20. 

4.10 Others 

KTDFC has been exempted from R�I Prudential norms up to 31�03�201�. From the financial year 201��1� 
KTDFC has followed the Non�Performing Asset �NPA� Procedure of provisioning for NPA. The interest 
accrued on NPA Loans i.e, principal�interest pending for more than �0 days on loans advanced has been 
reversed & maintained as a memorandum account “Interest suspense” & “Interest accrued” for respective 
loans amounting to Rs.1,01,�0,3�,�1�.�0�� will not reflect in the books of accounts. 

4.11 Foreign Currency Transactions 

The Corporation had no imports during the year and there were no income or expenses in foreign currency. 

4.12 Contingent Liabilities 

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt, the outcome of which is contingent are as follows� 

 

 

4.13 Segment Reporting 

i. Segments have been identified in line with the Accounting Standards AS�1�, Segment Reporting, taking into 
account the organi�ational Structure as well as the differential risks and returns of these segments. The 
operations of the corporations predominantly relate to N�FC operations� the other business segment is �OT 
operations. The activities of the corporation are restricted to the State of Kerala and therefore no 
geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary. 
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(In Lakhs) 
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�a� N�FC Operation �3��.33 1233�.�� 
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�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���� ��������� ��� ������� �������� ��� ���� �������� ������� ������ ����� ����� ������� ���� ��� ��������� ����������� ���
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��� ���� ��������� ��� �� ����������� ������� �������� ������������ �������� ���� ���������� ������������ ���� ��������

������������������ �������� �������
���������������� �� �������
Total 6577.26 14031.65 
���������������������������� - - 
Total Income 6577.26 14031.65 
B.  SEGMENT RESULT: � �
������������������� ���������� �����������
������������������ ��������� ���������
���������������� ��������� �������
Total Profit Before Tax (7622.35) (32611.39) 
Income Tax Expenses � �
������������ � �
������������� ������� ���������
���������������������������� ��������� ���������
������

� �

Profit after Tax (7935.12) (24130.52) 
C. CAPITAL EMPLOYED � �
�������������� � �
������������������� ��������� ���������
������������������ ��������� ���������
���������������� ��������� ���������
Total Assets 134709.08 159509.15 
�������������������� � �
������������������� ���������� ����������
������������������ �������� ��������
���������������� ������� ��������
Total Liabilities 159376.27 176241.22 
Net Segment Assets/(liabilities) (24667.19) (16732.07) 
D.  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE � �
������������������� �� ��
������������������ ����� �������
���������������� ����� �����
Total 11.42 794.36 
E.   DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION � �
������������������� �� ��
������������������ ������� �������
���������������� ����� �����
Total 862.30 847.01 
F.   OTHER NON-CASH EXPENSES � �
������������������� ������ ���������
������������������ ����� �����
���������������� �� ��
Total 38.07 30138.46 
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4.14 Related Party Transactions 
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Total 6577.26 14031.65 
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B.  SEGMENT RESULT: � �
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Profit after Tax (7935.12) (24130.52) 
C. CAPITAL EMPLOYED � �
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������������������ ��������� ���������
���������������� ��������� ���������
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�������������������� � �
������������������� ���������� ����������
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���������������� ����� �����
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REPLAY TO DRAFT COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR 

GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 

 

 

 

COMMENTS OF C&AG REPLIES OF KTDFC 

 

A. COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL POSITION  

 

1. Profit and Loss Account 

Other Income 

Schedule 3.18 Rs.48,16,22,346 

  

Overstatement of Other Income  (Schedule 3.18) by 

Rs. 2.88 Crore (Rs. 1.45 crore in respect of BTC 

Thampanoor and Rs 1.43 crore towards BTC Ankamaly)  

due to non provision of annuity / operating fee payable to 

KSRTC (half of the new income from the BTCs), as 

provided under the terms & conditions of the Government 

order dated 07.11.2008 and 25.10.2007 respectively.  

 
 

 

The actual amount 

payable to KSRTC as 

annuity was calculated till 

30/09/2018. The measures 

have been taken for 

finalizing the income and 

expenditure from BOT 

project. Necessary 

corrections will be made 

in FY 2020-21 after the 

completion of operating 

fee computing. 

 
 

B. COMMENTS ON FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
1. Deferred Tax Asset (Net) (Note 3.6)- Rs. 59.86 

crore 

 
Overstatement of deferred Tax Asser (Net) by Rs. 

106.13 crore and understatement of reserves and surplus 

(Negative) to that extent as the company is not in a position 

to comply with the conditions as per paragraph 17 and 18 of 

 
 

 

 

 

The company was 

expecting profit in near 

future. So the deferred tax 
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For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

      Dr. B. ASHOK IAS 

Chairman and Managing Director 

 

Place: Thiruvananthapuram 

Date: 30-03-2023 

 

AS 22 where an enterprise has unabsorbed depreciation or 

carry or carry forward of losses under tax laws, deferred tax 

asset should be recognised only to the extent that there is 

virtual certainly supported by convincing evidence that 

sufficient future taxable income will be available against 

which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

amount was taken in 

financials 

 

 

 

C. COMMENTS ON CASHFLOW  

 

1. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

 

Finance Cost Rs (33,24,99,998) 

 

Overstatement of Cash out flow from financing 

activities by Rs. 2.82 crore due to inclusion of Interest 

accrued and due on Loan from District Co-operative Bank 

for the month of march 2020 that was not paid by KTDFC. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Noted the error be 

rectified in future. 

 

 

 



Annual Report 2019-20

Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 65

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

 

 

      Dr. B. ASHOK IAS 

Chairman and Managing Director 

 

Place: Thiruvananthapuram 

Date: 30-03-2023 

 

AS 22 where an enterprise has unabsorbed depreciation or 

carry or carry forward of losses under tax laws, deferred tax 

asset should be recognised only to the extent that there is 

virtual certainly supported by convincing evidence that 

sufficient future taxable income will be available against 

which such deferred tax assets can be realized. 

amount was taken in 

financials 

 

 

 

C. COMMENTS ON CASHFLOW  

 

1. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  

 

Finance Cost Rs (33,24,99,998) 

 

Overstatement of Cash out flow from financing 

activities by Rs. 2.82 crore due to inclusion of Interest 

accrued and due on Loan from District Co-operative Bank 

for the month of march 2020 that was not paid by KTDFC. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Noted the error be 

rectified in future. 

 

 

 

Name of the Member: 

Registered Address: 

 E-mail ID: 

Form No: MGT-11 

Proxy Form 

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the companies (Management 
and Administration Rule, 2014] 

CIN: U65923KL1991SGC005985 

Name of the Company: Kerala Transport Development Finance Corporation Ltd. 

Registered Office: Level 8(6th floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud, Thiruvanathapuram. 

Name of the Member: 

Registered Address: 

I/ We, being the member of………………….. Shares of the named company, hereby appoint 

        1.   Name: …………………….. 

 Address: 
 E-mail Id: 
 Signature: ………………, or failing him 

        2.   Name: …………………….. 

 Address: 
 E-mail Id: 
 Signature: ………………, or failing him 

        3.   Name: …………………….. 

 Address: 
 E-mail Id: 
 Signature: ………………, or failing him 
 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 28th Adjourned 
Annual General Meeting of members of the company, to be held on 28th day of September 2021 at 
04.PM at the registered office of the company, Level 8(6th floor), Trans Towers, Vazhuthacaud, 
Thiruvanthapuram and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below: 

 
3…………………………………………….. 
Signed this………day of…… 20 
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Signature of Shareholders 

 

Signature of proxy holder(s) 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hrs before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 

1) To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statement of the company for the year 
ended 31st March 2019, along with the comments of the Comptroller & Audit General of 
India, Additional Chief Secretary (Finance) and the Report of Board of Directors and 
Statutory Auditors thereon. 
 
 
Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

 
 

 Signature of Shareholders 

 

Signature of the Proxy holder(s) 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hrs before the commencement of the 
Meeting. 
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